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BASIC IDEA EARIER:

RE
Environment

EEMBR

A
Individuals

Hopson Development'’s philosophy is “property owners and shareholders
as core”, and making contributions for them is always our mission.
Providing satisfaction guarantee to property owners to meet their needs
is always our top priority; “because we are Hopson Development, we
can”. We strive to provide an excellent living environment for property
owners, and yielding the best investment returns for our shareholders.

Property owners and shareholders

HE
Community
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BASIC IDEA EARIER:

ENVIRONMENT

Hopson Development is committed to environmental protection. Taking
measures like recycling of resources and reduction of discharges, we
have been able to build, together with property owners, a clean, green,
environment-friendly and harmonious living complex.

INDIVIDUALS

Hopson Development respects every individual and values inter-personal
relationships. We encourage our staff to realize themselves at work; we
live up to all our commitments made to property owners; we execute all
the agreements entered into with our partners; we provide reliable
support to the government and the partnership.

COMMUNITY

Hopson Development keeps a strong foothold in the community, and
serves and contributes to it. By providing leisure venues, recreational and
sports facilities, security systems, information networks and learning
premises etc., we have been able to build a living complex that can cope
with various needs for the livelihood of property owners.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHU Mang Yee
XIANG Bin

AU Wai Kin

CHEN Chang Ying
XIAO Yan Xia

(Chairman)
(Deputy Chairman)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip
LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

COMPANY SECRETARY
MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

XIAO Yan Xia
AU Wai Kin

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Jones Day

31st Floor, Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The China Construction Bank

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of China

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Ltd.

Standard Chartered Bank

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

CITIC Industrial Bank

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

19th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street
Central, Hong Kong

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

Guangzhou - 29th Floor, Zhujiang Planning Building
Jianshe Da Ma Lu, Dongshan District, Guangzhou
Beijing - Zhujiang Development Centre, 23 Dawang Road
West Chaoyang District, Beijing
Shanghai - 18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building
555 Xujia Hui Road, Shanghai
Tianjin - No. 14, Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District, Tianjin
Shenzhen - 21st Floor, Jiangsu Tower, Yitian Road

Futian District, Shenzhen

SHAREHOLDERS" CALENDAR
REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Close of Register
1st June 2005 to 6th June 2005 (both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
6th June 2005

DIVIDENDS (PER SHARE)

Interim dividend HK3 cents
Paid on 25th November 2004

Proposed final dividend HK6 cents
Payable on 30th June 2005

LISTING INFORMATION
SHARES LISTING

The Company's shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

STOCK CODE
0754

CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 13 }& f%
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE 1t 3281

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

BEAREEARAE

Property Management

ES-$:

Property Development

YE S

Hotel Operations

B IE 5

Guangdong Esteem
Property Services Limited
BERERYFERBEERAF

Guangdong ER

Beijing 1t X

Shanghai £ /&

Tianjin X)£

Notes:

fia -
1)

@)

40% owned by the Group
AR E BB 40% M 5

Gallopade Park — South Court
SSAEE -
Pleasant View Garden
R E

Huanan New City

Huajing New City
R
Regal Palace
RSB
Regal Riviera”
wiIms"
Others®
ﬁ,ﬁﬂ(l)

Guangzhou Regal
Riviera Hotel"”

ML RBE"

Beijing Regal Court
IRHIHER
Beijing Fresh Life Garden
T RHIHENRE
Beijing Citta Eterna
IRESEE

Beijing Howard Johnson
Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel
ERFERFEEE

Shanghai Hopson Town
EEE A
Shanghai Hopson Binjiang Court
EBEEEIR

Tianjin Jingjin New Town

KRR

Others include development projects such as Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay, Gallopade Park,
Fairview Garden, Fairview South Court, Regal Riviera Villa, Yunshan Xijing and

Yijing Huayuan.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Hf %4 £

YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER
BEZE+-_BA=+—HLEFE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT = &S

Chu Mang Yee R & &k

By leveraging on the Group’s past outstanding results and relatively low-cost land bank

coupled with the continuing exploration of innovative and new operating management

models, the Group is expected to have a bright future.

BREREBUAEBRNLEXBENRAMERAN T ERE - BRAERAIFESE S AN

FROFEERD  SENRKRETBENRE -

| am delighted to present the annual results of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited (“Hopson” or the “Company”) for the year ended 31st
December 2004 to our shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2004, the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
was HK$611,250,000, an increase of 94% as compared to
HK$315,354,000 in the previous year. Earnings per share increased 97%
to HK61 cents (2003: HK31 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6 cents per share for the year ended 31st December 2004. Together
with the interim dividend of HK3 cents per share, the total dividend
payout per share for the year was HK9 cents per share, a 80% increase
as compared to HK5 cents in 2003.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & &

MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT

MARKET CONDITION AND OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2004, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") Government
strengthened the implementation of macroeconomic austerity measures
through the imposition of stringent control on land supply and bank
credits, and achieved a remarkable result in containing some unstable
factors. However, the Chinese economy continued to grow rapidly and
its household income was on the rise. This led to a huge demand for
improvements in living standards, thus providing a healthy environment
for further development of the PRC property market. In 2004, the growth
rate of the PRC economy increased by 9.5%, while the investment in
property development amounted to RMB1,315.8 billion, representing a
28.1% increase as compared to 2003.

The Group has obtained a fairly good investment return from the three
major economic zones in the Mainland. Its property development projects
are located in the PRC's fastest growing areas. The following table
highlights the economic and residential property transaction data of 2004
for Guangzhou, Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin, as announced by the PRC
National Bureau of Statistics:
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & 5

Gross % change Transacted % change
domestic compared to residential sales compared to
product 2003 area 2003
BREE B-ZZ=F FEMS B-2Z=F
e BR B R & ®BR

(RMB billion) (‘000 sq.m.)

(ARE+1ET) (FFIK)
Guangzhou & M 400 +15.0% 11,219 +7.2%
Beijing 51 428 +13.2% 22,858 +29.1%
Shanghai tE 745 +13.6% 32,337 +38.5%
Tianjin A2 293 +15.7% 12,932 +26.5%

Guangzhou B

After years of consolidation, Guangzhou's property market commenced
its rebound in mid 2003 and maintained a steady growth. With a more
mature consumer base, coupled with a host of other positive factors,
such as the implementation of the “9+2 Pan-Pearl River Delta
Cooperation” policy, the opening of the new airport and the new
convention centre, the construction of Guangzhou University City, the
approval of the project relating to Panyu Railway Station and the
successful application to host the Asian Games, all these expedited the
development of the property market in Guangzhou in 2004.

Beijing

In 2004, with the preparatory work for 2008 Beijing Olympic Games
progressed well underway, the Olympic stadiums, the infrastructure
projects and other public transportation facilities raised the overall living
and working environment in Beijing, thus enhancing property values.
Leveraging on its capital city status and long standing heritage value as
well as an international metropolis, together with China’s strengthening
position in the world’'s economy, Beijing has drawn a massive interest of
foreigners and non-Beijing residents into the property market. In addition,
with the increasing need for purchasing property led by redevelopment
and continuous urbanization, there is a huge demand for properties in
Beijing.

Shanghai

Shanghai has positioned itself as an international metropolis, leading to a
broader prospect for the development of commercial properties. With
the construction of infrastructure facilities and stadiums having gradually
commenced, which will enhance the overall quality of the city, Shanghai
is well prepared for the 2010 World Expo, which will enhance the overall
quality of the city. The optimistic outlook of the Shanghai property market
displayed by the inflow of foreign capital further promoted the
development of the property market there in 2004.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = fF ¥ &

Tianjin

Commencing from 2003, large-scale infrastructure construction and
redevelopment of the city were carried out by Tianjin. It also accelerated
the demolition of old and dangerous buildings with the redevelopment
area for 2004 reaching 4 million sq.m., reflecting the well-being of the
property market. The lower average living area per capita as compared to
the national level and the consumers’ changing concepts on better living
standards brought about by economic development were the two main
reasons contributing to the development of the property market in Tianjin.
Moreover, the planning of Greater Beijing and the effects of the “Pan-
Bohai Economic Zone" are expected to further expedite the economic
developments in Tianjin.

BUSINESS REVIEW
TURNOVER

For the year ended 31st December 2004, turnover amounted to HK$4,450
million, a 34% increase as compared to HK$3,326 million in 2003.
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Turnover of the Group by cities:

Turnover in 2004

A=

R-_ZT=FHG RRETARENERER
BHHNE  NMREEFHENE - —TTNF
FEMEEHI0BEF LA FHEMSTEHE
BRI - ABEEEREZHEERREKTE - &
BEREIHBEHEELRKYBSRE LR
NHREEHEMSEROMEEZRA - 1t
Sh RIERAE - BRYEBEER] HROEES
E BHERERENBRTRRFNES -

e AEI)

EER

BE-_ZZNF+_A=T—HILFE  A£H
MMEHEERRIMSERBT B_ZEZ=FEN
SHERE33.2612 8 T8 M134% ©

BEWE D ARBHERMT

Turnover in 2003

—EENEHER TR CFHEER

(HK$ million) Ratio(%) (HK$ million) Ratio(%)

(EE®ET) LAl (BZ%&T) By

Guangzhou J& I 2,395 54 2,196 66
Beijing R 1,459 33 1,130 34
Shanghai b} 299 7 - -
Tianjin RE 281 6 - -
Others H 16 - - -
TOTAL HBET 4,450 100 3,326 100

Turnover of the Group by cities

BEmES 2 EEHESHENT

Tianjin
Rz

Shanghai
i

Guangzhou
=

Beijing
=

2004

Beijing
=

Guangzhou
=2l

2003
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Turnover of the Group by major projects: BEIEFERE P2 AEEBEEENT - "

i

Turnover in 2004 Turnover in 2003 =

—EENFHES “ETCFHEE

(HK$°000) Ratio(%) (HK$°000) Ratio(%) t

(F#7) H Al (FB7T) H Bl >

al

Beijing Regal Court EREITER 729,912 16 246,743 7 1l

Guangzhou Gallopade Park -  EMNBESTEE - jﬁ

South Court M 617,367 14 533,895 16 E

Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden &/ i% 5 22 & 567,039 13 354,957 11 #

Guangzhou Huanan New City &M 3 & ¥ 484,280 1 385,487 12 =
Beijing Citta Eterna TREFEE 444,253 10 167,471 5
Guangzhou Huajing New City & M 2 = ¥ 372,881 8 370,779 1
Shanghai Hopson Town EBEEHH 298,534 7 - -
Beijing Fresh Life Garden ERGENKE 285,071 6 567,419 17
Tianjin Jingjin New Town RETRIG 280,485 6 - -
Others Hit 370,091 9 699,171 21
TOTAL et 4,449,913 100 3,325,922 100

Turnover by major projects = EI1HH & A HEBEEHMT

Beijing Regal Court 7%
EFEEIFSR

Others 21%
Hith

Guangzhou Gallopade Park - South Court 16%

BMNBRIEE —m%e

Beijing Fresh Life Garden 17%
ERENRE

Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden 11%
EMNRSRE

Guangzhou Huagjing New City 11%

N EE S Guangzhou Huanan New City 12%
EMERI IR
Beijing Cittd Eterna 5%
tRBEEER
2003
Others 9%

Hith j

Tianjin Jingjin New Town 6%
RIBTUEHH, '

Beijing Fresh Life Garden 6%
ERENRE

Beijing Regal Court 16%
ERHIFHS

Guangzhou Gallopade Park - South Court 14%
EMERRIEE —Fast

Shanghai Hopson Town 7%
EiEEEE

Guangzhou Huajing New City 8%

EMERT Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden 13%

EMER2E

Beijing Citta Eterna 10%

tREEEE Guangzhou Huanan New City 11%

RMER I

2004



T
o
ke
w0
3
S5
|9
o
<
o8
o
o
3
@
=)
2
T
o
Q
>
@
w
=
2
=
5
Q
5
>
>
>
=
Q
)
@
T
Q
3
N
o
o
I

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = fF ¥ &

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT

The Group continues to adopt a cross-regional expansion strategy and
strategically selects and explores new markets in major cities in the
Mainland. Its existing land bank is sufficient to sustain the business growth
of the Group in the foreseeable future.

In 2004, the Group acquired through tender a site of 206,000 sg.m. for
residential use in Jiangbei District, the centre of Huizhou city. Furthermore,
in Guangzhou where a more mature property market exists, it secured a
site of approximately 56,000 sq.m. at Nanzhou Road through an
acquisition of equity interest, and an additional site of approximately
55,600 sg.m. at Tonghe Road.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS

In 2004, property market in the Mainland sustained steady growth. Overall
demand outweighed supply. Steady economic growth increased the
average personal income of urban habitants, thus driving the demand for
quality properties. Against this background, for 2004 the contracted sales
of residential properties, recorded strong growth and the price for
commodity residential housing was up by 15.2% when compared with
2003.

Through its successful marketing strategies, the Group has consolidated
its leading position in the mainland property market and established a
strong brand name. The Group will continue to keep a watchful eye on
the diversified demands of the residential property market, so as to launch
quality property developments with creative and innovative designs that
are well-received by the market. The Group will also enhance its
customers’ level of satisfaction by providing value-added services, like
better community management.

In Guangzhou, several of the Group's property projects performed well
with good market sentiment. Due to the arrival of first year teachers and
students from Guangzhou University City and the approval of the Panyu
railway station project, Huanan New City recorded an impressive growth
in terms of sales. Gallopade Park - South Court and Huajing New City
both benefited from their proximity to the new Guangzhou International
Convention Centre. The satisfactory sales of Regal Riviera, Fairview South
Court and Pleasant View Garden were attributable to their proximity to
the soon-to-be-launched Guangzhou subway Line No. 3. In mid 2004,
the Group launched its new project, Regal Palace, a high-end residential
project located at the river bank of the Pearl River. The sales of this
project were extremely satisfactory. All in all, after years of sluggish
performance, the rebound of the Guangzhou property market greatly
benefited the Group’s development projects there.

T
AEBEEZTENBOBERERER  KB1T
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RZZTNF  SEBBHSHHNES T EM
AT AL [E —$8206,000F A KREER ML
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355,600 5 KAt 3R o
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The Group’s three projects located in Beijing, namely Beijing Regal Court,
Citta Eterna and Fresh Life Garden, are located on the periphery of
Beijing’s central business district. Of these, a large number of units in
Citta Eterna and Fresh Life Garden were transferred to the buyers for
occupation during the year. Overall, the Group had an encouraging sales
performance in Beijing in 2004.

Shanghai Hopson Town and Tianjin Jingjin New Town started pre-sales in
August and September 2004 respectively, and the market response of
these two property projects was encouraging. The healthy cash inflow
from proceeds of these sales had a positive effect on the financial position
of the Group.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

“The impeccable realization of quality living” — High quality customer
service is an important factor contributing to the Group's success.
Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited (“Esteem”), a subsidiary of
the Group, provides comprehensive and systematic property management
services to the owners. Esteem strives to create an ideal living environment
for the owners, and has been recognized for its efforts by the community.
In 2004, Esteem was accredited as a first class property management
enterprise in China. The Group will continue to provide innovative
customer services so as to further enhance its service quality.

In order to strengthen communication between the Group and its
customers, with the aims of further enhancing the cohesive force of the
enterprise and providing a broader level of interaction among its
customers, the Group has established the “Hopson Club”. This
establishment is well recognized by the Group’s customers and has
expanded to various regions along with the Group's regional expansion
efforts.

PROPERTY RENTAL, HOTELS AND OTHER BUSINESSES

The rapid economic growth and robust development of the property
market in the Mainland have raised the rent and occupation rates of
rental properties such as commercial offices. In order to strengthen and
stabilize the returns on assets, investment in commercial property is an
important strategic development of the Group. Guangzhou Hopson
International Building project and the commercial project in Phase 4 of
Gallopade Park in Guangzhou will be launched in 2005. It is expected
that these projects will bring stable annual rental returns to the Group.

The Group's hotel projects comprise Regal Riviera Hotel (in which the
Group owns a 40% equity interest) located in Guangzhou, Beijing Howard
Johnson Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel located in Beijing and Tianjin Water
Palace Convention Hotel located in Baodi, Tianjin. Among them, Beijing
Howand Johnson Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel will be managed by Howard
Johnson Group of the United States, one of the world’s best-known and
reputable hotel management companies, and plans to commence
operation in the first half of 2005.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = fF ¥ &

With the further development of the PRC economy and the enhancement
of living standards, the operating results of the Group’s hotels are
expected to improve. The Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel has commenced
its operations. With the enhancement of management and aggressive
marketing, the Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel will fully capture the
upcoming opportunities in its vicinity, like the Guangzhou Trade Fair, and
is expected to deliver satisfactory operating results. The Tianjin Water
Palace Convention Hotel plans to commence operation in mid 2005, and
will then host important forums. It is believed that this will greatly
enhance the hotel’s reputation and bring forth satisfactory operating
results.

Part of the golf course of Jingjin New Town in Tianjin commenced its soft
opening in 2004. With the first batch of units of Jingjin New Town to be
transferred to buyers in 2005 and as the community continues to grow,
it is expected that the operating results of the golf course will achieve
stable growth. Tianjin Water Palace Convention Hotel will commence its
operation in mid 2005, which will benefit the Group's property and golf
businesses. The Group continues to focus on its sales and operation with
a view to enhancing and improving the service of its golf business and
expanding the customer base. The Group anticipates that the operating
results of its property related businesses will achieve satisfactory growth.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sound corporate governance is an important foundation for the expansion
of the Group’s business. Through enhancing the Group’s management
efficiency and by deployment of innovative management model, the
Group has achieved fruitful returns for shareholders. The Group has
established a decision consultancy committee to ensure that accurate
and effective decision are made on important issues thereby significantly
lowered the risks involved.

The Group is able to formulate strategies which go hand-in-hand with
economic development by analyzing the economic environment and the
market trends of property developments, and has improved the
management standard by following its strategic planning. The Group has
further improved its management structure, clarified the function of each
management level and strengthened its staff training. Through the
continuous improvement of its management standard, the Group’s future
development will be further secured.
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PROSPECTS

A report from the National Bureau of Statistics of China indicates that
the property investment and total sales area of commodity property in
the PRC recorded a strong growth in 2004 as compared with that of
2003. Market demand for property remains strong and the prospects of
the overall market remain promising for the future. It is expected that the
PRC government will further control the scale of city redevelopment in
2005 and will contain the growth of investment by various measures
including increasing the interest rate and tightening credit. With the
better regulation of the property market, the requirement on property
developers will be higher. However, it will be a good development
opportunity for property developers with large land banks and well
recognized brand names.

Capitalising on the Group's past outstanding results and relatively low-
cost land bank, coupled with the continuous development of active
management models, the Group is expected to have promising prospects.
For instance, Tianjin New Town in Tianjin, the Group has not only
developes a property project, but also within its vicinity creates an
environment for many business sectors, such as travel, retail shop rental,
hotel, golf course and other leisure facilities, so as to make it a self-
contained project. The Group is optimistic about the expected returns
from Tianjin in 2005, as the new model of commercial development has
been put in place. The Group has also commenced commercial property
developments in Guangzhou. With the launching of the forthcoming
projects, the Group expects steady contribution thereform.

The Group has established a strong brand name for its quality products
and services, which has brought a better profit margin and returns to the
Group. The Group has strived to provide the best housing to its customers
through its promotional themes, from “The year of enhancing its housing
products”, “The year of quality services”, "The year of integrity”, to
“Enhancement of living culture” in 2004, all of which have established a
sound corporate image. The Group will continue to consolidate and
enhance its brand image in 2005 with a new theme, “The year of the
cultural community”, which will enrich the community’s cultural life. It is
also believed that the brand image of the Group will be greatly enhanced
through the promotion of various cultural activities in the community.

The Group will explore new business opportunities while strengthening
its development in current developing regions. The Group will continue
to launch its renowned property development projects in Guangzhou,
namely, Regal Riviera, Huanan New City, Pleasant View Garden, Gallopade
Park - South Court, as well as new projects, including Yijing Huayuan,
Regal Riviera Villa and Yunshan Xijing. The construction of Huizhou Regal
Riviera Bay project will commence in the first half of 2005 with presale
contemplating to be launched towards the second half of the year. This
is supposed to be an engine of development for the Pearl River Delta
region. The project in Tianjin is entering the harvest stage and more
properties will be launched for sales in 2005. Through its active land
bank acquisition strategy, the Group will further consolidate its sustainable
development strategy. Under no unforeseen circumstances, the Group is
expected to achieve even more inspiring results in 2005.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = fF ¥ &

Moreover, the Group has mentioned in its circular issued to shareholders
issued on 30th June 2004, that the Group planned to acquire minority
interests in certain joint venture project companies and 59.5% equity
interest in Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited, at a
consideration of RMB351 million and RMB497 million respectively. The
Group completed the acquisition of the minority interests in certain joint
venture project companies as of 31st December 2004 and the acquisition
of 59.5% equity interest in Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate
Limited will be completed soon. The Board of Directors believes that
these acquisitions, will bring positive contribution to the Group’s profit.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Hopson Development will continue to focus Guangzhou and the Pearl
River Delta Region as its core areas for development, and to take a
proactive approach to expanding into the Pan-Bohai Economic Zone and
the Yangtze River Delta Economic Region for forming a diversified
geographical coverage to mitigate investment risks.

It will strive to become a highly integrated property developer with the
capability to design, construct, plan, market and provide after sales
service, realising the goal of “Own Projects, Our Own Development”.

It will gradually step up the efforts to develop commercial properties like
offices, shopping malls and hotels, and will hold them as long term
investment for enhancing the stability of the Group’s future development.

It will strive to seek cooperation with international reputable property
developers, shopping mall contractors and operators, through such
alliance to realise the diversification of shareholders.

Finally, 1 would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to my fellow Directors for their advice and to all members of
staff for their dedication, hardwork and support.

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman
Hong Kong

18th April 2005
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LAND BANK

The Group's land bank (inclusive of Regal Riviera in Guangzhou) when
fully developed, will amount to a total gross floor area (“GFA") of
approximately 12.67 million sq.m. as at 31st December 2004, compared
to approximately 12.29 million sq.m. as at 31st December 2003.

The following analysis of the Group’s land bank (inclusive of Regal Riviera
in Guangzhou) by GFA is based on its internal records and has not been
independently verified.

T b
RZZEZWNF+_A=1+—H0 AEEZ LM
BEEENKIFTR) EXT2EEREAREEBR
51#912,670,000F 5Kk - MZET=F+=-HA=
+— Bz LR # 412,290,000 /5K ©

MTAEELMHEEZDN (BREMKIH
7)) REEERYREBEAABCEE  MES
UKE -

USAGE AND LOCATION ARRitE
GFA (million sq.m.)
EEEB(BEYAK)
Guangdong

Province Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Total
BERE = X i Mt
Residential F=® 4.99 1.13 3.54 0.73 10.39
Shopping arcade 74 & 0.44 0.10 0.07 0.02 0.63
Office RN 0.35 - - - 0.35
Carparks EE 0.91 0.12 - - 1.03
Hotels B 0.09 0.04 0.14 - 0.27
Total wEt 6.78 1.39 3.75 0.75 12.67

Land bank breakdown by usage (In GFA)

RS TG (BERE)

Others Eftt

Shopping arcade FI4#

Carparks {FE3%;
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T DEVELOPMENT STATUS AND LOCATION BEMRARME

% GFA (million sq.m.)

o REE®E (FELHK)

0]

o) Guangdong

§ Province Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Total
o BERE = P L #Et
T

o b s

g Completed properties BERME 0.61 0.11 - - 0.72
“5 Properties under development #EH ¥ % 1.24 0.58 0.34 0.06 2.22
3 Properties to be developed FRERME 4.93 0.70 3.41 0.69 9.73
0]

Q

= Total et 6.78 1.39 3.75 0.75 12.67
=)

3

3 Land bank breakdown by location (In GFA)

= RGBT ibieE (BRERR)

o

o

S

DEVELOPMENT STATUS AND USAGE BRARR AR
GFA (million sg.m.)
EEEB(BBEFXK)
Shopping

Residential arcade Office  Carparks Hotels Total
= & WAE BES BIE @t
Completed properties BIER ¥ 0.32 0.14 0.01 0.21 0.04 0.72
Properties under development % & th ¥ ¥ 1.56 0.16 0.06 0.25 0.19 2.22
Properties to be developed FERME 8.51 0.33 0.28 0.57 0.04 9.73
Total it 10.39 0.63 0.35 1.03 0.27 12.67

Land bank breakdown by development status (In GFA)
BREBRAMRE L EE (REER)

Completed properties
[=5-35%7/ES

Properties under development
BRPUE

Properties to be developed
HRBYE
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TITLE STATUS AND LOCATION BB Rk B ith B
GFA (million sq.m.)
EEEB(BEEEK)
Guangzhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Total
BEM = Ri#E LiE wat
Land use rights certificates and & U5 £ #1{F A
construction works planning  BERZEHR T
permits obtained BT ED 1.60 0.67 0.49 0.22 2.98
Land use rights certificates BEEE L AE
obtained but without BRRERZT
construction works RREFTFAE
planning permits @ 1.03 0.38 0.57 0.20 2.18
Construction land use planning & U5 & A i
permits obtained ®® HREFFAIE OO 2.58 0.20 2.44 - 5.22
Grant of major approvals BEHIEHRR
and certificates not yet FEEZIL 0o
obtained @ ® 1.57 0.14 0.25 0.33 2.29
Total FCE 6.78 1.39 3.75 0.75 12.67

(1) Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning permits
have been granted.

(2)  Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the
appertaining construction works planning permits have not yet been
obtained.

(3)  Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted.
However, the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained and
will only be secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer contracts
and payment of land premium.

(4)  Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g. obtainment of the
construction land use planning permits, and the execution of land transfer
contracts) and the payment of the appertaining land premium will the land
use rights certificates be obtained.

(5)  For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 32 and 40 to the
accounts.

Major additions to the Group’s development land bank during the year
included sites located in Huizhou City of approximately 206,000 sg.m., in
Nanzhou Road, Guangzhou of approximately 56,000 sg.m.and in Tonghe
Road, Guangzhou of approximately 55,600 sq.m..

() CERAENLHNERENERIEREF
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ERTIHEZARAIIN BB LI ES RN
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(5) THHESZXNRRESLHERAMEI2840 ¢
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PROJECT COMPLETION SCHEDULES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 7% 5l B8

MAJOR PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT BY YEAR OF

COMPLETION
Projects to be completed in 2005

5E AR B B9 B AR
BERFEZREANEIEER

R -_EERFTHAIER

Group's

Projects to be completed interests GFA (sq.m.)
% 5 B 1 B AEENER BEEE(FAHX)
Guangzhou & M

Huajing New City, Phase 6, Zone 4 and 6 ESHW6E4 - 61 100% 111,617
Pleasant View Garden, Eastern Zone, Phase 3 %= 2 E R %35 94.98% 20,165
Huanan New City, Phase 4 A4 99% 28,941
Regal Riviera, Phase 3 I % =38 40% 54,894
Gallopade Park — South Court, Phase 3 BB —mB3H 95% 104,834
Regal Palace, Phase 1 5 = 2 50 1 A 100% 74,138
Regal Riviera Villa, Phase 1 w518 100% 46,311
Beijing ER

Beijing Regal Court, B Zone, Phase 2 bR E 28R 100% 277,847
Beijing Citta Eterna, Phase 2 It RES=E 28 100% 93,887
Shanghai L&

Shanghai Hopson Town, Phase 1 FBAEHFA1E 100% 102,463
Tianjin RE

Tianjin Water Palace Convention Hotel REKEEFREE 70% 142,829
Tianjin Jingjin New Town, Phase 2 R TR RN 288 70% 291,351
TOTAL Mt 1,349,277

Regal Riviera Villa
el

Tianjin Jingjin New Town

KRBT



Projects to be completed in 2006

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 2740l g8

Group's

Projects to be completed interests GFA (sgq.m.)
#ERNIEE rEEEE BEER(ERK)
Guangdong Province BERE

Huajing New City, Phase 6, Zone 5 E S eHsE 100% 159,988
Pleasant View Garden, Eastern Zone, Phase 4 e BER R4S 94.98% 46,955
Pleasant View Garden, Central Zone, Phase 2 RERETE2H 94.98% 104,350
Huanan New City, Phase 5 ey 99% 243,562
Regal Riviera, Phase 4 HOLTF =48 40% 240,000
Gallopade Park — South Court, Western Zone BERTEE-mEAR 95% 51,710
Regal Palace, Phase 2 TR ER2H 100% 29,730
Regal Riviera Villa, Phase 2 76 & W HE 28 100% 90,000
Yijing Huayuan BERER 100% 172,154
Yunshan Xijing, Phase 1 ELES1H 70% 140,000
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay, Phase 1 BN FHEE1H 100% 100,000
Beijing E R

Beijing Fresh Life Garden, Eastern Zone ERHKIZEMNKERERE 100% 142,250
Beijing Citta Fterna, Phase 3 tRESEE3H 100% 65,485
Shanghai L

Shanghai Hopson Town, Phase 2 FEBA A2 100% 51,566
Tianjin R

Tianjin Jingjin New Town, Phase 3 RAET RN IH 70% 444,500
TOTAL Mt 2,082,250

Yijing Huayuan

R

Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay

B
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T Projects to be completed in 2007 and beyond HRZFEELERE KA IEER
9 Group's
3 Projects to be completed interests GFA (sq.m.)
g BERGER ARBEE BEEE(FHXK)
)
3
g Guangdong EXE
§ Pleasant View Garden, Central Zone, Phase 3 R 2 E PR3 94.98% 750,034
= Huanan New City, Phase 6 37 ¥ 650 99% 2,286,200
= Regal Riviera, Phase 5 BT % 254 40% 511,400
S Gallopade Park — South Court, Western Zone BetR-maAlE 95% 499,600
= Yunshan Xijin, Phase 2 EER2H 70% 60,000
g Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay, Phase 2 B = 2! 100% 300,000
§ Guangzhou Hopson International Building BEMEEBEEREKRE 100% 111,809
o
% Beijing E =
Beijing Regal Court, Zone A and F It RFRIBARFE 100% 422,855
Beijing Citta Eterna, Phase 4 :H: RS FE4H 100% 377,711
Shanghai b}
Shanghai Hopson Town, Phase 3 EBA EHHB3E 100% 170,995
Shanghai Hopson International Building LEEERBRE 50% 82,245
Shanghai Hopson Binjiang Court, Phase 1 EEEEETI 1 100% 42,070
Tianjin R#E
Tianjin Jingjin New Town, Phase 4 RETRIWAR 70% 1,600,000
TOTAL st 7,214,919

Yunshan Xijing Shanghai Hopson International Building

ELES LA EBRBRRE



PROPERTY PROFILE
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JE LMY
Gallopade Park - South Court
BRREE -

Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95%
owned)

&M KT & L RIE (R 95% M &)

Expected completion: Phase 3 (2005)
Western Zone, Phase 1 (2006)
EIERBEH 3 (ZETRF)
AR (ZEERF)

Pleasant View Garden

#"REZE
Guangzhou Avenue, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98%
owned)
EMNESREEMAEREE (HEH4.98%E %)
Expected completion: Eastern Zone, Phase 3 (2005)
Eastern Zone, Phase 4 (2006)
Central Zone, Phase 2 (2006)
Bt ZRAM: REIH(ZZTHF)
REAH(ZETAF)
hE2ZH (ZTTRF)

Huanan New City

EEHTH
Panyu District, Guangzhou (99% owned)
ENEBE (EHI9%ER)
Expected completion: Phase 4 (2005)
Phase 5 (2006)
B EHRAH : 48 (ZFTRF)
SHI(ZZEERHF)
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Huajing New City
R

105 Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
(100% owned)
BN K& 1L KB 10555 (B 100% & 23)
Expected completion: Phase 6 Zone 4 and 6 (2005)
Phase 6 Zone 5 (2006)
BHTHAE : 6H4K6E (ZTTHF)
6HIsR (Z 2T RF)
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Regal Riviera

RIFS
Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(40% owned)
EMESREREEMNKE (HEBI0%ER)
Expected completion: Phase 3 (2005)
Phase 4 (2006)

Bt THRBE® : 3 (ZE2RF)

AR (ZTERF)

Regal Palace
R
Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(100% owned)
BMNBHRE R = EMNKE (EHF100%#EH)
Expected completion: Phase 1 (2005)
Phase 2 (2006)

BiTHRAH: 1H(ZTTHF)

2B (ZFTRF)




L) N
gy
i il

el

B

Xl

Fa

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 2740l g8

Beijing Regal Court

TREIFR

23 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100%
owned)

ERTHBEAKXER235% (EH100%E )

Expected completion: B Zone, Phase 2 (2005)

Bt R BEH  BRE2B(ZETRHEF)

Beijing Fresh Life Garden
R ISMNKE

18 Bangzijing Village, Sanjianfang Town, Beijing (100%
owned)

TET=EEBRFHH185 (FEH100%E )

Expected completion: Eastern Zone (2006)

B AH: RE (ZZTTRF)

Beijing Citta Eterna
TtrRESEE

Gan Lu Yuan, Qingnian Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
(100% owned)
IRTHEEEFREER (EH100%EHE)
Expected completion: Phase 2 (2005)
Phase 3 (2006)
Bt ERBH 2B (ZTTREF)
S (ZZ2TRF)
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Shanghai Hopson Town
EBEERF
518, Anling Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (75%
owned)
I ERITBRERS18Y (HEBET5%ER)
Expected completion: Phase 1 (2005)
Phase 2 (2006)

BEATRBHE 1B (-ETHF)

2B (Z2TRF)
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| Tianjin Jingjin New Town
RIBTRITI
Baodi District, Tianjin (70% owned)
AETERE (EH70%ER)
Expected completion: Phase 2 (2005)
Phase 3 (2006)

BEit=HBEH 2B (ZTTRHEF)

3 (ZETRF)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY FACTSHEET REME-BER i

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December A-ZEBNE+—_RA=+—HIF ' EEKEDME g

2004 are as follows: EXI RN ;T#

Approximate at

Group's interest Existing use gross floor area b

Location g SEAG#ESR BRAZ BARERHEER E

Phases 5A, 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D FEIREEREEMT 100% Commercial, retail 114,200 sq.m. c

Huajing New City KU A LK 105 5% and carparking 114,200 F 7 % jﬁ,

105 Zhongshan Avenue ERFPESA HE TERRES W

Tianhe District 6A + 6B+ 6C K 6DH i

Guangzhou gl

Guangdong Province g

Mainland China

Phase 2, Jinan Garden FEAEEREEMT 90% Commercial, retail 11,267 sq.m.

South side of Zhongshan Avenue KT & [ KB & and carparking 11,267 F 75K

Tianhe District EHLEE 8 HE - TEREES

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phases 1, 2 and 3 HERAEEREEMNT 90% Commercial, retail 23,830 sq.m.

Fairview Garden BRI BT 238 5% and carparking 23,830 F 1K

238 Xingang West Road REERE— ZR=H HE - TEREES

Haizhu District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phases 1, 2 and 3 FEAEEREEMT 95% Commercial, retail, 7,053 sq.m.

Gallopade Park AKUEGRILRERE and carparking 7,053 F 75K

South side of Zhongshan Avenue ~ HSHEF— - K= HE ZTEREES

Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court HERAEEREEMNT 100% Commercial, retail 42,164 sq.m.

East side of Longkou West Road RAEEORERE and carparking 42,164 75 K

Tianhe District HRAE—RZH HE - TEREES

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Gallopade Park-South Court FEREEREEMNT 95% Commercial, retail 26,600 sq.m.

South side of Zhongshan Avenue  KARF L KEFE and carparking 26,600 F 5 K

Tianhe District BETEBR Hx TEREES

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Fairview South Court FEAEEREEMT 70% Commercial, retail 18,094 sg.m.

212 Xingang West Road BHRIMBEABE212 % and carparking 18,094 F 75 %

Haizhu District sk HE ZEREES

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

East area of Pleasant View Garden ~ P EIAEERE EMT 94.98% Commercial, retail 13,259 sq.m.

West side of Guangzhou Avenue BREENNERT and carparking 13,259 ¥ 75 K

Haizhu District BERERE HE - TEREES

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phase 1, Huanan New City FEAEEREEMT 99% Commercial, retail 45,358 sq.m.

Panyu District E8E and carparking 45,358 15K

Guangzhou EZRMAE G HE TEREES

Guangdong Province
Mainland China H
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Tianjin Water Palace Convention Hotel

REKEEEKEE

HOTEL OPERATIONS

In anticipation of increasing business activities and buoyant tourism
numbers, the demand for hotel facilities in China is expected to grow.
The Group started its hotel business in July 2004 when the 100-room
Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel commenced operation. Since its opening,
the hotel recorded a high average occupancy and satisfactory room rates
in 2004.

Currently, the Group has two hotels under construction, namely Beijing
Howard Johnson Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel and Tianjin Water Palace
Convention Hotel.

Beijing Howard Johnson Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel, located in Beijing Regal
Court with a capacity of 147 rooms, is scheduled for opening in the first
half of 2005. Howard Johnson, an international hotel management
establishment, has been engaged to manage the hotel.

Tianjin Water Palace Convention Hotel, located in Tianjin Jingjin New
Town with 760 rooms, is built to provide a wide range of facilities,
including spa, golf courses and meeting facilities. Overall, the prospects
of the Group’s hotel operations are promising.

B IE X
BERPBFERNIREXENED  PEBEER
mmﬁxkﬁM°$%lﬁ_?7E¢tH%%
,\/@Eiﬁ% J*JHE%/I %/@ELLEAEK/I %ﬁ
100 ER R_TTMFHBRENAEER
FH e

BAl AEEEEERMREE - LRFRFE
BERRREKEEFRBIE -

ERFRFEBEMNILRT R - FHZ2147
MER BN _ZERF LY FRRELE -
BERMBEREEEREEREEEER -

REKEEFREELRRZFEHM - 760

ERUREZERE  2FEE SRRHEK
SRR - BEME  AKREEELENANSIE
Gk

Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel

BMMKI®REE

Beijing Howard Johnson Regal Riviera Plaza Hotel

tRFRREBE



PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

In order to uphold its commitment to customers of “the impeccable
realization of quality living”, the Group continues to provide professional
and dedicated property management services through Esteem, its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Esteem was awarded with “China First Class Property
Management Enterprise” in 2004 for its quality services.

Given the need to establish two-way communication between the
customers and management and to facilitate the management’s better
understanding of the market, “Hopson Club” was established in 2004.
Since its establishment, the Club is well recognized by the customers.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 2740l g8
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE =77

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHU Mang Yee, aged 45, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Chu is
one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over 20 years' experience
in trading, construction, property investment and development. He is also
a member of the China People’s Political Liaison Committee, an Honoured
Citizen of Meizhou, Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of
Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of Corporate Strategy.
Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda Properties Limited which has an
interest in the share capital of the Company as disclosed under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

XIANG Bin, aged 58, is the Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Xiang was on the senior management of a public listed company before
joining the Group in February 2001. He has over 35 years' experience in
construction and administration management.

AU Wai Kin, aged 50, joined the Group in 1995. He is also a director of
other members of the Group. Mr. Au graduated from Zhongshan
University, Guangzhou, and has over 20 years’ experience in building
construction, town planning, real estate investment and property
development.

CHEN Chang Ying, aged 37, holds a master degree in engineering, and
is a senior engineer. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Chen was on
the senior management of the subsidiary companies of a public listed
company. Mr. Chen is presently the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. Mr. Chen has over 10 years' experience in civil engineering,
real estate investment and sales and marketing, and is also the deputy
officer of Guangdong Real Estate Association Sales and Marketing
Commission.

XIAO Yan Xia, aged 43, joined the Group in 1995. She holds a master’s
degree in economics from Zhongshan University and is presently the
Deputy General Manager of the Company and a director of other
members of the Group. Ms. Xiao has over 15 years’ experience in
investment research and capital management.

HITES

REMK - 455% 0 ARALFE - WAAKENEF
—fIBIHA - RELEHES  BE WERER
RRITEFEFA-_TFLER - WAAZERKBZ
B EREBMOEBMRMERCEHRKR
MRREER - REEDREBEZEFMBAE KIS
THEBZEXARBERBEADRIRAES 2 HE
EXARDAIZHE—EF -

TR - 585 ARABEER - R-—FTT—F-A
MBEALER  BEER-LTRARNBRER
AB - thERERTHER T HRERB=TH
FRER -

BER S0 R—NANAFNEARE U5
AEBEMKERRAZES - WEEREMN DU
AE-BELEETRE HHRE  HERE
EHRERTERE -+ F&R -

BRRE 375 TIREBEL  SHITREM RN
ZR=FNBEREEN R LTRAZMEBLR
ANEREEAR - BEAAREZBIRKE -
REAGELIARE HEREREHEETHR
BTFER YARREFEMEHREZESE
I

RERE B N—ANAFNELEE - K2
EREMFLUASEER  BRELSM - B
RARFZBEIBEE  IRFEBEEMKEAR
ZEZ BRIEREMANREAERTHER
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 69, is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. Mr. Yuen has over 35 years' experience in the legal field and is a
director of a number of listed companies. He is a China appointed
Attesting Officer in Hong Kong, a member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, and an arbitrator
of the China International Economic & Trade Arbitration Commission.
Mr. Yuen has been a member of the Board since 1998.

LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 55, is the Chairman of David C Lee
Group. He qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an
Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, an associate of
the Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers and an associate of
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr Lee is a former member of the
Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think Tank”. He
is currently the Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member
of the Land and Building Advisory Committee, a director of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited, a Council member of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a member of the Salvation Army Advisory
Board, Chairman of the Property Advisory Committee of the Salvation
Army and also a member of the Municipal Services Appeals Board. Mr.
Lee has been a member of the Board since 1998.

Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 53, obtained his professional
accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Wong is
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of Certified General Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong
had worked in various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with over
15 years of experience in handling auditing, financial accounting and
taxation matters. Mr. Wong is currently appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of Audit Committee of several
listed companies in Hong Kong. He also assumed the duty of financial
controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and Canada
for over ten years. Mr. Wong is presently practising as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He is knowledgeable with expertise in financial
accounting, taxation, import-export business and company management.
Mr. Wong has been a member of the Board since 1998.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE E=77
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CAIl Chun Meng, aged 40, is the Vice President of the Group and the
General Manager of the Guangzhou regional office. Mr. Cai graduated
from the Guangzhou Teacher's College. He studied in the United Kingdom
between 1990 and 1992 and obtained a master’'s degree from the
University of Western Sydney in 2000. He joined the Group in 1999. He
has extensive experience in real estate investment, property management
and organizational management. He is also the Vice Chairman of the
Real Estate Association of Guangdong Province.

LI Fu Ming, aged 42, is an engineer and the Vice President of the Group.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1997. He has over ten years' experience in
project and design management of civil engineering.

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 41, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liao
graduated from the Zhongshan University of Guangzhou and obtained a
master’'s degree from the University of Western Sydney. He has been
engaged in the real estate investment and business management for over
10 years, and has extensive experience in the handling of government
agencies and legal affairs as well as investment and development
management.

SHEN Hui Rong, aged 52, joined the Company in 2005 and is the Vice
President of the Group. Ms. Shen has been engaged in the tourist industry
for considerable years and has extensive experience in marketing and
international relations.

YANG Xiao Ping, aged 52, is a senior engineer and the Vice President of
the Group and the Deputy General Manager of the Tianjin regional office.
Prior to joining the Company in January 2005, Mr. Yang was engaged in
the real estate construction industry, and was a senior management staff
member of an overseas listed company. Mr. Yang possesses extensive
experience in real estate construction and business management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE &4 &2 &7
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PERFORMANCE

In 2004, the Group continued to implement appropriate sales and
marketing strategies to minimize the impact of rise in costs and to pursue
satisfactory sales performance. As a result, the Group secured a
commendable growth in sales volume and unit prices for properties sold
in Guangzhou and Beijing. Together with the well market response
received from the pre-sale of properties launched for the first time in
Shanghai and Tianjin, a second successive record-breaking turnover was
achieved for the year ended 31st December 2004, which increased 34%
from HK$3,326 million to HK$4,450 million as compared to the previous
year. Turnover does not include the sales from a jointly controlled entity,
in which the Group has a 40% interest. The volume of sales recorded by
the jointly controlled entity for 2004 amounted to HK$824 million (2003:
HK$625 million) representing an increase of 32% on the prior year.

Sales in Guangzhou experienced healthy growth amid continuing recovery
of the real estate market. Unit selling prices of the Group’s properties
sold in Guangzhou increased by 17% when compared to the previous
year, while the sales volume, inclusive of Regal Riviera, decreased slightly
by 0.3% from 543,078 sq.m. (4,543 units) to 541,491 sq.m. (4,532
units). The Group's major development projects, including Huanan New
City, Pleasant View Garden and Huajing New City reported encouraging
results, and the new development project, Regal Palace, was also well
accepted by the market.

Sales in Beijing were on the rise with Beijing Regal Court remaining to be
the top profit contributor within the Group in 2004. In terms of sales volume,
an increase of 55% from 149,725 sq.m. (1,106 units) to 232,417 sq.m.
(1,563 units) on the prior year was recorded. Brand-name recognition, to
some extent, helped uphold unit selling prices of the Group’s properties sold
there which were up by 15% as compared with 2003.

Pre-sale of the Group's property projects in Shanghai and Tianjin
commenced in the second half of 2004. Amide favourable market
conditions, both projects performed reasonably well, with 45,204 sg.m.
(269 units) sold for Shanghai and 75,690 sg.m. (297 units) for Tianjin

In 2004, the Group made some hefty improvements over its gross profit
to turnover ratio from 27% in 2003 to 32%, and direct cost to revenue
ratio from 73% in 2003 to 68%. A general increase in selling prices of
properties sold, coupled with a significant portion of turnover from high-
end properties which commanded higher gross profit margins, mitigated
the effect of a mild increase in construction costs and a greater amount
of interest charges capitalized from bank borrowings raised to finance
the development of projects.

ES]

R-ZZEZNF  AEEEEETEE ZHERD
R BRBEREXFIEMAEREE
URFRLARBEZHERR - Bl - A&EE
EMAMt Rz EREEREMNEEBNBESE
R - MEEEBRREGRBECWERE
RifzmBRE #EZZTZTWNF+-_A=1+—
HEvEEBEEE _FaIHiLsr A2
T = 4 7 3,326,000,000/ 7T 1 i1 34% =
4,450,000,000 7T - EXEBEI TN AELEEES
Q%R —HEREGI BB EXE - ZLRE
HEERN-_TTMF 7 8E 23%824,000,000/8 7T
(ZZZ =4 : 625,000,000/ 7T) * & FEE LT+
32% °

EEWMEMS HEERT  BEMNZHEBBERE
CER ANEETEEMNBEECMEEMEE I
EFEEMT%  MEEE (BEKIFTR) S
543,078 F 75K (4,543HERL) - BARKAD03%E
541,491 750K (4,532H Efz) - AEB 2 F 2%
BHE EREEHN - R2RERESHNE
MBLASEIRE  MAERTENTRER
NEBETSERE -

TRZEBRHRELER M_ETNFILRKILT
SHBAAEELEREAATER - tRMEZ
iﬁ EHE5% IR - B EFE2149,725F 75
K (1,061 B (1) 3 hN 2= 232,417F 75 K (1,5631E &
i) - MRESRARE—CRELEHREAEE
MEZBENEE EHEER_ZE=FLH
15% o

AKERLBRREZNERER-TTRFET
FERM - EANZTHERT  ZFBREXRR
W B BB S H45,204F 75K (26918 % fL) -
iR 2RI & H75,690F 75 K (297 41)

R-ZZEZNF AEEZEAERHEEBL XX
BE AT =F227%ENENR% ' ME
BERAHEEELRAR _TEE=F 273% K&
£68% BHEWME L EBEB LI MtM¥
HETHESOREEFNERG 2 aEME
ETEE &K%%ﬁM&l1Aﬁyﬁh§ﬁx
ARRBEREBREMS EAMF S MATE R
ZEE -

op
HF
my
|
i
at
=
]
al
[l
L
i
JE|
_FH
_Fq
#




T
o
ke
w
3
=)
U
o
<
o
o
ke
3
®
3
2
T
o
Q
=)
@
w
-
3
=
@
o}
.
>
=)
>
C
Q
~
@
ke
9
3
N
o
()
S

FINANCIAL REVIEW 87 75 [cl g8

Despite a general increase in business activities during 2004, operating
expenses were well contained. In absolute terms, general and
administrative expenses increased by 23% from HK$140 million to
HK$172 million when compared to the previous year. This was mainly
attributed to a general increase in staff costs and other general expenses
consequent upon the commencement of pre-sale in Shanghai and Tianjin.
However, the expenses when expressed as a percentage of turnover fell
from 4.2% in 2003 to 3.9% in 2004.

Continuous efforts made to control selling and marketing expenses
showed results. While the amounts expended increased by 8.7% from
HK$231 million in 2003 to HK$251 million in 2004, due primarily to the
increase in turnover, the expenses expressed as a ratio of turnover
decreased significantly from 7% to 5.6% when compared with the
previous year.

During the year, the Group incurred interest expenses before capitalization
totalling HK$205 million (2003: HK$164 million). The increase was caused
by the rise in interest rates and bank borrowings. The average interest
rate of borrowing costs incurred for 2004 was approximately 5.7% per
annum (2003: 5.6% per annum).

RESULTS

The Group's expansion strategy began to deliver results which contributed
to the surge in profit attributable to shareholders for the year 2004 to
HK$611 million, being the highest number in the Group's history, and
representing an increase of 94% as compared with HK$315 million for
2003.

PROFITABILITY

Return on equity, computed as a ratio of earnings before interest and tax
over shareholders’ equity, increased from 30% in 2003 to 43% in 2004.

Profit from operations covered 5.4 times of the interest expenses before
capitalization, compared to 3.2 times for the previous year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In 2004, the Group enjoyed a good geographical spread with Guangzhou
being the major profit contributor to the Group (54%) and followed by
Beijing (33%). New property developments in Shanghai and Tianjin trailed
along and contributed 7% and 6%, respectively. For 2005, with full year
results from Shanghai and Tianjin to take account, a greater percentage
of contributions from areas outside Guangzhou is expected.

For the year 2004, 97% (2003 - 97%) of the Group's turnover was
derived from the property development business which will remain its
core activity and principal revenue contributor.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2004, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$12,815 million and its total liabilities (excluding minority interests)
amounted to HK$9,442 million, representing an increase of HK$2,471
million and HK$2,315 million respectively on the previous year. Total
assets increased mainly due to the additions of (1) properties under
development and (2) hotels under construction, classified as fixed assets,
notably from projects in Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin. Aligned with this,
total liabilities also increased, primarily due to the existence of (1)
additional borrowings obtained to finance development projects and (2)
a significant increase in deferred income relating to proceeds received
from pre-sale properties not yet recognized as turnover on account of
limitations confined by construction progress.

Current ratio decreased slightly from 1.28 at last year end to 1.23 this
year. Shareholders’ equity increased to HK$3,253 million at 31st
December 2004 from HK$2,694 million at 31st December 2003, due
mainly to the contribution from the current year’s profit attributable to
shareholders.

As at 31st December 2004, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding minority interests)
was 74% (2003: 69%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total debt less
cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 114% (2003:
105%).

CASHFLOW

In 2004, the Group's cashflow from operating activities was HK$902
million, representing an increase of HK$610 million over the previous
year. The improvement was primarily due to the net cash inflow generated
from the pre-sale of new development projects in Shanghai and Tianjin.

As at 31st December 2004, the Group has cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$737 million (2003: HK$660 million) of which
HK$150 million (2003: HK$256 million) was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities. In addition, the Group's bank deposits of
approximately HK$108 million (2003: HK$53 million) were charged by
certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted by
the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 98% of the cash and
bank deposits was denominated in Renminbi, 1% in Hong Kong dollars
and 1% in United States dollars.

LIABILITIES AND BORROWINGS

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$3,506 million (2003:
HK$3,046 million) representing an increase of 15% or HK$460 million
over the previous year. Gearing, measured by net bank borrowings (total
bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits) as a percentage of
shareholders’ equity, decreased from 89% last year to 85% this year.
The slight improvement in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the
operating cash flows generated from new development projects in
Shanghai and Tianjin.
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Approximately 97% of the Group's bank borrowings was denominated
in Renminbi with fixed interest rates and approximately 2% was
denominated in United States dollars and 1% was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars with floating interest rates.

The bank borrowings as at 31st December 2004 were all secured with a
repayment profile as set out below:-

AEBRTERNHTBIUAREHE - LLER
RIS #02%0 20 5 8 R 1% 075 T &t
4 TR RS -

R-FEME+-_A=+—0  FEEZRTE
EQREEM  BEXFHMOT

As at As at
31st December 2004 31st December 2003
R-ZZEZENF R-ZZEE=F

T=A=t-H T=A=t-H
(HK$ million) (U BHEETA)
Within 1 year —FR" 1,958 55.8% 1,384 45.4%
After 1 year but within 2 years —EWF 878 25.0% 1,550 50.9%
After 2 years but within 3 years WE=F 670 19.2% 112 3.7%
Total bank borrowings BIRITIEE 3,506 3,046
Less: Bank deposits and cash B ROTEREES (737) (660)
Net bank borrowings FRITEE 2,769 2,386

As at 31st December 2004, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$3,506 million (2003: HK$3,046 million) for short-term
and long-term bank loans, which were fully utilized.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2004, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$3,378 million (2003: HK$2,738 million) were pledged
with banks for loan facilities used by subsidiaries and a jointly controlled
entity.

R-ZEENFE+-_A=+—H AEEREHR
REFIR 1T E RME 493,506,000,0008 T (—ZTF
=4 : 3,046,000,000/8 L) - BITEEVEEH
A -

EEKH

R-IZZWNF+-_A=+—H8  A£EETEE
M fE 3,378,000,0008 &t (Z 2 & = & :
2,738,000,000/870) < EEEEF TIRT - 1EA
MBAR R —MXEFREHEEMAERZEA -



CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2004, the Group provided guarantees to banks for:—
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RREE

RZZZNFE+= H +—HB AEERNATIE
E ﬁ%E{TTIE{/\%1

2004 2003
“EEMF —TT=F
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET HEET

- mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the - HEEAEEMECER
Group's properties RERBER 3,270 1,861
— loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity - —HARZEHEERNEE - 9%
— loans borrowed by related companies -BEQAINEE 80 86
TOTAL BEt 3,350 2,041

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments in respect of land and property
construction costs and capital contribution to a jointly controlled entity,
amounted to HK$23,264 million (2003: HK$20,385 million) as compared
with HK$ 1,682 million (2003: HK$1,451 million) which was recorded on
the accounts as at 31st December 2004. Out of the total capital
commitments of the Group, HK$3,801 million (2003: HK$2,431 million)
was mainly related to contracted obligations of the Group for future
development costs and expenditures to be incurred on various projects of
the Group in the short to medium term with the remaining amount of
HK$19,463 million (2003: HK$17,954 million) being related to future
development expenditures approved by the Directors but not contracted
for as at 31st December 2004. With continuous cash inflow from property
sales and the committed banking facilities coupled with the cash in hand,
the Group is in an adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going
capital commitments by stages.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited accounts of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in
investment holding and property development, investment and property
management.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical locations and their
respective contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st
December 2004 is as follows:
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EZEMAREALEIREBARAA (AR
A EEMBRATIATRBIAEE])BE-F
FOFE+ A=t - HLEFENFREFNLEZ
fH -

ITEXRK
ARAA-BREZRAR  HTEHBAR -

BERRRARZHERIRUSTREER -9
XEBE RERMEEERK -

AEBHE -_TZNF+-_A=+—HLFER
WEREH ZEEERESAHLE R B/
wwT

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

BEE HEERFMNER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Guangzhou =0 2,395,779 517,309
Beijing ik = 1,459,240 329,849
Shanghai = 298,534 128,912
Tianjin RE 280,502 19,114
Others HAh 15,858 15,858
4,449,913 1,011,042

Other revenue H I A 117,706
Unallocated corporate expenses KX (25,669)
TOTAL P 1,103,079

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business segments and their
respective contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st
December 2004 is as follows:

AEBHEEZE-_TZNF+_A=+—HIFER
ERESNEEBRESOEELEFNER D
i N

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

BED YRERINER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Pre-sale and sale of properties MEREREE 4,338,019 976,776
Rental income el A 42,744 38,470
Property management fees MEERE 69,150 (4,204)
4,449,913 1,011,042

Other revenue E U A 117,706
Unallocated corporate expenses RO B (25,669)
TOTAL wat 1,103,079




MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2004, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 3.8% of the Group's turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 52% of the
Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Group's turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 25% of the
Group's purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
4 to the accompanying audited accounts, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2004 are
set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 61 of this
annual report.

An interim dividend of HK3 cents per share, totalling HK$30,090,000,
was declared and paid during the year. The Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK6 cents per share, which will bring the
total dividends for the year ended 31st December 2004 to
HK$90,270,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
35 to the accompanying accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 37 to the accounts.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2004,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$53,228,000 (2003: HK$50,062,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$4,068,000 (2003: HK$6,109,000) to various organisations for
charitable purpose.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in fixed assets and investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to the accounts,
respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies are
set out in Notes 18 and 19 to the accounts, respectively.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans as at 31st December 2004 are set out in Notes
29 and 30 to the accounts.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 42 to the accounts.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 125 to 128.

ON-GOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) has
granted a conditional waiver to the Company from strict compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in force prior to
31st March 2004 in respect of certain on-going connected transactions.
Pursuant to the waiver, the Company is not required to disclose details of
such connected transactions by on-going press notice and/or circular and/
or to obtain prior independent shareholders’ approval. Details of such
connected transactions are as follows:

R
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Appointment of a main contractor - Guangdong Zhujiang
Construction Limited (“GZ Construction”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the Group
may, from time to time, appoint GZ Construction as its main
contractor in respect of construction works to be carried out on
property development projects of the Group. The appointment of
GZ Construction as the Group’s main contractor will be on normal
commercial terms conducted at arm’s length between the parties
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; and
will be fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned. Further, individual construction contracts
will only be awarded to GZ Construction if the terms offered by it
are not less favourable than those offered by other contractors. GZ
Construction, being a 60%-owned subsidiary of Guangdong
Zhujiang Investment Limited (“GD Zhujiang”), a minority shareholder
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st
December 2004, construction fees paid/payable to GZ Construction
amounted to approximately HK$792,000,000 (2003:
HK$1,250,000,000).

Appointment of a main contractor - Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the Group
may, from time to time, appoint Hanjiang as its main contractor in
respect of construction works to be carried out on property
development projects of the Group. The appointment of Hanjiang
as the Group’s main contractor will be on normal commercial terms
conducted at arm’s length between the parties and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and will be fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned. Further, individual construction contracts will only be
awarded to Hanjiang if the terms offered by it are not less favourable
than those offered by other contractors. Hanjiang is owned as to 90
per cent. by Mr. Chu Hing Yee, the brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
the Chairman and executive director of the Company (“Mr. Chu"),
and 10 per cent. by Mr. Chu Fan, the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu.
Each of Mr. Chu Hing Yee and Mr. Chu Fan is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, Hanjiang being
an associate of Mr. Chu Hing Yee is also a connected person of the
Company. During the year ended 31st December 2004, construction
fees paid/payable to Hanjiang amounted to approximately
HK$1,298,000,000 (2003: HK$882,000,000).
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Appointment of a property management company - Guangdong
Esteem Property Services Limited (“Esteem”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the Group
may appoint Esteem to manage the unsold units of the Group's
properties located in Guangzhou and the southern part of
Guangdong Province in return for management fees equal to those
charged to owners of individual units of the sold properties. Esteem
is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules in force prior to 31st March 2004 because 10% equity
interest of Esteem is held by Guangdong Zhujiang Property
Management Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GD Zhujiang.
During the year ended 31st December 2004, management fees paid/
payable to Esteem amounted to approximately HK$323,000 (2003:
HK$4,196,000).

On 19th January 2004, the Group acquired the remaining 10%
equity interest in Esteem from Guangdong Zhujiang Property
Management Company for a consideration of RMB 467,000. Esteem
thus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. After 19th
January 2004, any transactions between the Company and Esteem
are exempt from the disclosure or shareholders’ approval
requirement of the Listing Rules.

Appointment of a property management company - Beijing Zhujiang
Century Property Management Limited (“Beijing Century”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the Group
may appoint Beijing Century to manage the unsold units of the
Group's properties located in Beijing and Tianjin in return for
management fees equal to those charged to owners of individual
units of the sold properties. Beijing Century is owned as to 80% by
Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Beijing
Zhujiang”) and 20% by GZ Construction, while Beijing Zhujiang is
owned as to 60 per cent. by GD Zhujiang and 40 per cent. by GZ
Construction. Accordingly, Beijing Century is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st
December 2004, management fees paid/payable to Beijing Century
amounted to approximately HK$4,907,000 (2003: HK$1,926,000).

Appointment of a property management company - Shanghai
Hopson Property Management Limited (“Shanghai Hopson”)

During the two years commencing 1st January 2004, the Group
may appoint Shanghai Hopson to manage the unsold units of the
Group’s properties located in Shanghai in return for management
fees equal to those charged to owners of individual units of the
sold properties. Shanghai Hopson is owned as to 40% by GD
Zhujiang and 60% by Shanghai Zhujiang Investment Limited which
is in turn owned as to 60% by GD Zhujiang and 40% by GZ
Construction. Shanghai Hopson is a subsidiary of GD Zhujiang which

(iif)
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is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, Shanghai Hopson constitutes a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st
December 2004, management fees paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson
amounted to approximately HK$116,000 (2003: Nil).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

(i) a. the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s
length between the parties on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the business of
the Group, and are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned,;

b. the above transactions have been carried out on terms
no less favourable than terms available from independent
third parties;

c.  the disclosure provided herein in respect of the details of
the above transactions is in compliance with Rule 14.25
(1)(A) to (D) of the Listing Rules in force prior to 31st
March 2004;

(i)  during the year ended 31st December 2004, construction fees
paid/payable to GZ Construction amounted to approximately
HK$792,000,000 (2003: HK$1,250,000,000), which has not
exceeded the annual construction fees paid/payable to GZ
Construction in respect of the year concerned as permitted
under the said waiver from the Stock Exchange;

(iii) during the year ended 31st December 2004, construction fees
paid/payable to Hanjiang amounted to approximately
HK$1,298,000,000 (2003: HK$882,000,000), which has not
exceeded the annual construction fees paid/payable to
Hanjiang in respect of the year concerned as permitted under
the said waiver from the Stock Exchange;

(iv) during the year ended 31st December 2004, management fees
paid/payable to Esteem amounted to approximately
HK$323,000 (2003: HK$4,196,000), which has not exceeded
the annual management fees paid/payable to Esteem in respect
of the year concerned as permitted under the said waiver from
the Stock Exchange; and
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(v)  during the year ended 31st December 2004, management fees
paid/payable to Beijing Century amounted to approximately
HK$4,907,000 (2003: HK$1,926,000), which has not exceeded
the annual management fees paid/payable to Beijing Century
in respect of the year concerned as permitted under the said
waiver from the Stock Exchange.

(vi) during the year ended 31st December 2004, management fees
paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson amounted to approximately
HK$116,000 (2003: Nil), which has not exceeded the annual
management fees paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson in respect
of the year concerned as permitted under the said waiver from
the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above transactions and
confirmed that the transactions:

have received approval from the Board of Directors; and

have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing the transactions.

Save as disclosed in Note 4 to the accompanying accounts, no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associated company, jointly
controlled entity or holding company was a party and in which any of the
Company’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2004, the Group entered into the
following connected transactions:

Acquisition of the respective interests of GD Zhujiang and its
subsidiaries (“Zhujiang Group”) in certain non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group

vy REEZE-_ZTZMFE+-_A=1+—H1t
FERN - E#/%#tﬁﬁﬂmaﬁ
454,907,000 L (ZE2=F -
1,926,000/ 7T) + I KB BIRIREE 2 AT
BFH LR emib R GEBEE
MRt ES T EAO2EEEE
BRE -

(Vi) RBE-_TTNF+_A=1+—HL
FERN - EN/BRNLEALEZER
EHR160008T (ZET=F -
T) TRBEREBHIAE T2 LA
ROt ERERFEARALEARE
XN/ BNz EFERBRE -

RRABIZEMERERNLAR S THERZER
5

(1) BEEZSHE: K

St
TFe
RN

2) BEZEXRSHEZIER

BRANBERN 2 BR B M S AR IR BB SN - AR RIMEEH
BERAFEELSAFAEMER  EARFRAE
ERMBAR  BELAR - HEZHEEIER
AERFMRAIEMERAREBABNEMERS
MR/ BEBEARER -

BRERS
REE-TTWF+-A=+-ALFE %%
B THBERS -

() WBERKIRAWBAR ([TIEE])R
AEBETH2EMBAR 2 BRER



GD Zhuijiang, being a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries
of the Company, has granted the Group a first right of refusal to
invest in and jointly develop any property development projects in
the PRC in which GD Zhujiang has or may have development rights.
As Zhujiang Group is desirous of disposing its minority interests in
certain subsidiaries of the Company in order to refocus on and
strengthen its own business activities, and in view of the growth in
the residential property markets in Guangzhou and Beijing, together
with the potential positive earnings impact on the Group, on 23rd
June 2004, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire Zhujiang
Group's interests in certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group at a total consideration of approximately RMB351.1 million
as follows:

Name of non-wholly
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ARRETHBRARZEERREREKTIMAE
ERNELERENREREASERERKLE
B ERELPHAMELREEE - AR
HKIEERHEERARRETHBRAR Z P H
BEER  BREEETRARERG 25
VEREMNRIEREEDEMSE2ER - URY
REEZEERBANIEYE  AEER-ZZTN
FRAZT=BEIBERBER IEERAEE
ETHZEMBRAR 2R REBEHNARE
351,100,0007T + W& 50T

Percentage of  Resulting percentage
equity interests

of equity interests

owned subsidiaries F2EMBLARIZERE acquired held by the Group Consideration
Uy 8 IR A rRERERE RE
ZHEDH EEzBEDH
(RMB million)
(ANREBET)
1. Guangdong Huajingxincheng EEESIMEHEFR A A 10% 100% 36.8
Real Estate Limited
2. Guangdong Hopson Yuehua ERALEMERHMERR A A 10% 100% -
Real Estate Limited
3. Guangdong Hopson EREEERFHEERAA 25.5% 100% 35.4
Lejing Real Estate Limited
4. Guangdong New Tai ERFTRLEHMERRRAA 48% 100% 3
An Real Estate Limited
5. Guangzhou Hopson Yijing EMEERRFEMEERAA 34.5% 99.5% 36.3
Real Estate Limited
6.  Guangdong Huanan New City EREEHMEMERR LA 39% 99% 113.6
Real Estate Limited
7. Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real It RA& £ MBI EREHR A 30% 100% 62.3
Estate Development Limited
8. Beijing Hopson Beifang Real It RA 4L A RHEREERAQF 30% 100% 32.0
Estate Development Limited
9. Beijing Hopson Yuling Real It RA4MEFEMEREAFR LG 30% 100% 31.7
Estate Development Limited
The above transactions were completed as of 31st December 2004. FARGERZZZNE+_HA=1+—HTK °
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(iii)
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Acquisition of 59.5% equity interest of Guangzhou Zhujiang
Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“Qiaodao”) from GD Zhujiang and
Guangzhou Shanlian Hua Qiao Real Estate Limited (“Shanlian”).

In view of the encouraging economic condition, the growth in the
property values in Guangzhou, and the increase in demand for
good quality commodity properties in Guangzhou, the Directors
consider that Regal Riviera, the development project held by
Qiaodao, will have a good sale potential and thus will have a positive
impact on the profits of the Group in the long term. As such, on
23rd June 2004, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
29.5% equity interest from GD Zhujiang and 30% equity interest
from Shanlian at a total consideration of approximately RMB 496.9
million.

The acquisition was conditional upon the finalisation of the business
registration procedures in mainland China and is expected to be
completed during the first half of 2005.

The Group entered into a conditional Cooperation Agreement and
a conditional Internal Sub-Contract with Shanghai Hungkang North
Bridge Property Company Limited (”Shanghai Hungkang”) in
connection with the development of the piece of land located in
Minxing District of Shanghai comprising approximately 1,196.52 mu.
(the “Lot") via Shanghai Lung Meng Company Limited (“Shanghai
Lung Meng"), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

In order to facilitate the transfer of the 25 per cent interest of
Shanghai Hungkang in Shanghai Lung Meng to Chia Lung Group
Company Limited (“Chia Lung”) and Prestige Dragon Development
Limited (“Prestige”), both companies are effectively wholly-owned
by the Company, on 31st May 2004, the Group entered into a
conditional Cooperation Agreement and a conditional Internal Sub-
Contract with Shanghai Hungkang.

Pursuant to the conditional Cooperation Agreement, Chia Lung,
Prestige and Shanghai Hungkang, being all joint venture partners of
Shanghai Lung Meng, agree to change the mode of their co-
investment and cooperation in the joint venture company such that
instead of contributing to 25 per cent of the registered capital and
sharing 25 per cent of the profits of Shanghai Lung Meng, Shanghai
Hungkang shall be solely responsible for the development of and be
solely entitled to the profit generated from the piece of land located
at Qin No.1 Jiefang No.160 Huaping Jiedao of the Lot comprising
approximately 300 mu. (the “Carved-out Land"”) and shall not share
any of the profit or loss of Shanghai Lung Meng. The Carved-out
Land shall be transferred by Shanghai Lung Meng to Shanghai
Hungkang by way of asset distribution when 25 per cent of the
total investment for the development of the Carved-out Land has

(i)

(iii)

AERKIEEMN -"BEBEEAR DA
(=W WEENKIEHEERR AT
(T5#B])) Z LA #E 2559.5%

BRI E ARG HZ@FPE&ﬂT
‘\H‘?E?ﬁuu%%Zﬁitﬂ EEZRAEM
BECERBEERILT %Eﬁ%%@ﬁ &
EMEBEAEERAERIETZE - B
bt AEBR _EENFANAZF=ZBET
HEmEREKTIR =85 WE295% Kk

30% 2 AER  RELEOARE
496,900,0007T °
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T FRRFEAR _ZTRFL¥F
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BARAT ([ LEER]) RN EEMHE
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BWEEREERT m FEREIENE
ﬁvﬁﬁt@ﬂ&ﬁﬂ%%@%%ﬂ&Z%
FHBE1605 A 1L 2 L 43008 2 + i
([FrEleti])Ba2s  T2EZEMET
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been incurred. Upon transfer of the Carved-out Land from Shanghai
Lung Meng to Shanghai Hungkang, the latter shall transfer its 25
per cent interest in Shanghai Lung Meng to Chia Lung and Prestige
at the nominal consideration of RMB1. Shanghai Hungkang shall
reimburse Chia Lung and Prestige for 25 per cent of the relocation
expenses and development costs incurred by Shanghai Lung Meng
in respect of the Lot up to 30th September 2003.

Pursuant to the Internal Sub-Contract, Shanghai Lung Meng agrees
to appoint Shanghai Hungkang to undertake site clearance and
demolition works in respect of the Carved-out Land at no
consideration.

Upon the Cooperation Agreement and Internal Sub-Contract
becoming unconditional, the Group will enter into a Termination
Agreement with Shanghai Hungkang to terminate the Share Transfer
Agreement entered into among Chia Lung, Prestige and Shanghai
Hungkang on 6th August 2002 for the transfer of Shanghai
Hungkang's 25 per cent interest in Shanghai Lung Meng to Chia
Lung and Prestige and to mutually release each other from further
obligations thereunder.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
Au Wai Kin

Chen Chang Ying

Cheung Fong Wing

(Retired on 24th May 2004)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip
Lee Tsung Hei, David
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver

All Directors except Mr. Chu Mang Yee is subject to retirement by rotation
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Au Wai Kin and Ms. Xiao Yan Xia retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2004, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(1) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £ & &

ESERITHARRKRS - HERHO K
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R-ZETMNF+-A=1+—R ARBEEFERT]
BASREES RAE G (&5 kARG
EXVRBETIRESHME MG AR F LB RAER
AR HETAEBEE (&R EHRPEGED
FEXVED) 2Bty - HEABRD REFTHER 2 HED
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(1) RR@zHFR

Number of shares of the Company

RXRARGEA
Percentage
Personal Family Corporate Other of shares
interests interests interests interests Total  outstanding
HE#T
PN £ ZEER ARER HitEs R kotESk

Name of directors EEnE

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) RAKEEQ) - - 637,500,000 - 637,500,000 63.56%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BERLEED) - - 37,500,000 - 37,500,000 3.74%
Mr. Xiang Bin BT E 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.10%
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia BEERL 100,000 - - - 100,000 0.01%

Notes — ft &t —
a.  Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 637,500,000 shares of the Company through a. RAKEEBBEZEHMENTEBEXAR

NELBEEFREE (REAN) BERAAE
B KX 8637,500,0008 i 17

Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and
HKSCC Nominees Limited.

BEREEEBETERE RIEHO AR
B R X 837,500,000/ fx 17 °

b.  Mr. Au Wai Kin held 37,500,000 shares of the Company through a b.
company wholly- owned and controlled by him.




(2) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
4th April 1998 (the “Old Scheme”), Mr. Xiang Bin, an Executive
Director of the Company, was granted share options on 30th April
2002 to subscribe for the shares of the Company at HK$1.17 per
share, details of which as at 31st December 2004 are stated as
follows:

Exercise price  Exercise
per share  period

Date of grant R AH BRITEE TEH
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(2 REREZEFAR
READBR—ASNFEA DB RK B
g8 ([E518))  RARMTESER
FER-_TE_FOA=TRERTER
& AAERINTETRBARBRND - 1
ZEEMEF A=+ -HZHBOT

Number of share options

BRERE

Granted  Exercised Lapsed

Beginning during during during

of year  theyear  theyear  theyear End of year

B ERARE FRTE  FRRN R

30th April 2002 —“EE-FWA=+H HK$117E T 30th April 2002 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - -
to 29th April 2007
ZEECEMA=TH
EIETLENAZTNA
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - -

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$2.38.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2004, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had been granted any
right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company nor
exercised any such right.

ERBREITEAA R RO B TR E
#2388 TT °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives' interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2004, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity has interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

R

FERR

B EXTESERITHAZRKRD - HEARD RES
WAEZED AR —SHAMRE 2 ERI  R-F
ZME+-A=+—R  BARAREES LB
ERPIEBHATEZELMZLE - THE
BARRABRM P RBREE S LB HEHIEXV
HE2REINMARARARARE L EEIRR

Number of Percentage

Capacity and issued shares of shares

nature of interests (long position) outstanding

BEITRHG HE BT

Name of shareholders R & B GO REMEE g8 (7R) KO BESD L
Sounda Properties Limited MEBXERDA Beneficial owner 637,500,000 63.56%

BRBAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2004, the Directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4th November 2002, the Company adopted a new Share Option
Scheme (the “New Scheme”) which is in compliance with Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. No option shares have been granted under the New
Scheme since its adoption. No share options granted under the Old
Scheme, which was terminated on 4th November 2002 upon the adoption
of the New Scheme, were cancelled or lapsed during the year under
review. As at 31st December 2004, there were no options outstanding
under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options granted under the
Old Scheme and exercised by an Executive Director of the Company are
set out above under the paragraph headed “Long positions in share
options” under the section headed "Directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”.

The following is a summary of the New Scheme disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the
New Scheme

As recognition of the contribution of the
participants by granting options to them
as incentives or rewards.

BREXHEEEN R-TZEMNF+ A=+~
B BEEHA SEEMEMALTRARFR
EBERR (TR LESFRAERIIEXVE) 2
B HEROREFTHREREESF LBE R

BIEXVEE 2R E35 BAMAA T HE 2 x5
S AN
IRJE °

BRETINER
R-TZE-_F+—-A0B  KARRRA—EBHE
BB ([t 8l)) - %at8IFa EmRAIE 7
EZHTE - BFERME - HEREHTIR
HEBERE - RERBEFI RN _FT_F1
— A AR R T IAR L) B 2 BRE
REOBFEREIHIAR -R_FTWNF+ A
S+t BERERBEAIAR T CEBBREH KT
- REEFERD CBRERARE] —MLHTT
ESTHEARBREZFBIEN LXEERTR
BERBD - HEROREFEE 2R AR
—HZIRNBREZHR]I K-

Riz LR ST ERBEM AT
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Participants of the
New Scheme

Total number of
shares available
for issue under
the New Scheme
and percentage of
issued share
capital as at

18th April 2005

Maximum entitlement
of each participant
under the New
Scheme

The period within
which the shares
must be taken up
under an option

The minimum period
for which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

The amount payable
on application or
acceptance of the
option and the period
within which payments
or calls must

or may be made or
loans for such
purposes must be paid

Any executive, employee, director
(including non-executive director and
independent non-executive director),
consultant, adviser and/or agent of the
company or any of its subsidiaries.

100,300,000 shares unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to
the terms of the New Scheme
(approximately 10% of issued share
capital)

The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon the exercise of share
options already granted or to be granted
to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding share options)
in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital as
at the date of grant. Any grant of further
options above this limit shall be subject to
certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the New Scheme.

Commencing on the date of grant of an
option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the
earlier of the business day preceding the
fifth anniversary thereof and the business
day preceding the tenth anniversary of the
date on which the New Scheme was
adopted.

Completion of half year’s full-time services
with the Company or a subsidiary.
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8. The basis of
determining the
exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the
board of Directors and shall at least be
the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the relevant
options;

b. the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of
offer of the relevant options; and

c.  the nominal value of the Company's
shares

9. The remaining life
of the New Scheme

The Scheme was adopted on 4th
November 2002 and will expire at 5:00
p.m. on the business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi. The Group experienced no significant foreign exchange
movement and the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign
exchange loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2004, the Group, excluding its associate and jointly
controlled entity, employed a total of 3,596 (2003: 2,859) staff, the
majority of which were employed in mainland China. Employees’ costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$144 million (2003:
HK$119 million).

The remuneration policies remained the same as revealed in the Annual
Report for the year ended 31st December 2003.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
during the year under review and all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out therein.

DH
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CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of any information which
would indicate that the Company is not, or was not in compliance with
the Code of Best Practice (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules at any time during the year ended 31st December 2004,
except that the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for specific terms. However, all Directors except the
Chairman and the Managing Director are subject to retirement by rotation
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws. In the opinion of the Directors, this meets the
objective of the Code.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31st
December 2004.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company'’s audit committee is composed of all the three independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. The audit committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters including a review of the audited consolidated accounts
for the year ended 31st December 2004 with the Directors.

The audit committee met eight times during 2004. Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu,
Philip and Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David each attended all eight meetings and
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver attended seven meetings.

All members of the audit committee received HK$70,000 each as
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31st December 2004.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 8th March 2005, the Group entered into two land transfer agreements
with Beijing Jin Yu Jia Ye Real Estate Development Company, an
independent third party, for the acquisition of the land use rights of two
land sites located at Guang Qu Men Wai Da Street, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, comprising a site area of approximately 43,000 sq.m. at a
consideration of approximately RMB511 million (approximately HK$482
million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £% &%

AUDITORS

The accounts were audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the Company’s auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th April 2005
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AUDITORS’ REPORT #% 2Bl 5

PRCEWATERHOUSH(QOPERS

B EBAE G F AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 61 to 118 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true
and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company
and the group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince's Building
Central Hong Kong
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AUDITORS’ REPORT #% 21 Fl &5

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the group as at 31st December 2004 and
of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th April 2005
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 424 1835

(For the year ended 31st December 2004) (B Z—ZFZFPF+_—H=+—HILFEZ)

=~

2004 2003
—2EBNE —TT=F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Ft &t FET FHET
Turnover EXR 5 4,449,913 3,325,922
Cost of sales 855 B A (3,040,671) (2,431,612)
Gross profit EH 1,409,242 894,310
Other revenue HAi A 5 117,706 7,211
Selling and marketing expenses HERMZHEER (251,400) (231,251)
General and administrative expenses — B RTRER (172,469) (139,852)
Profit from operations & Tl 6 1,103,079 530,418
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 21 £ [ 4% # & & 5% F 100,390 110,922
Share of loss of an associated company DIEHE DR EE (734) (1,118)
Finance costs B 75 AR 7 (13,375) (4,280)
Profit before taxation BB A A 1,189,360 635,942
Taxation it I8 10 (473,931) (252,000)
Profit after taxation B8 m 715,429 383,942
Minority interests DR R E (104,179) (68,588)
Profit attributable to shareholders P 3R 115 38 ) 11 611,250 315,354
Dividends g 12 90,270 50,100
Earnings per share FREH

— Basic — &R 13 HK61 cents #fli HK31 cents /&1l
- Diluted -&% 13 HK61 cents Bl HK31 cents &l
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BALANCE SHEETS EE & &

(As at 31st December 2004) (R =—FZFMFF+=-A=+—H)

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Investment properties

Properties under development
for long-term investment

Land pending development

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in an associated
company

Investment in a jointly controlled
entity

Deferred tax assets

Goodwill/(Negative goodwill)

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Properties under development
for sale
Completed properties for sale

Accounts receivable

Due from related companies

Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets

Investment in securities

Pledged/charged bank deposits

Cash and other bank deposits
Total current assets
Current liabilities

Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans,

current portion
Accounts payable
Land cost payable,

current portion
Deferred income, current portion
Accruals and other payables

Due to an associated company
Due to directors
Due to related companies

Due to a jointly controlled entity

Taxation payable

Note
i &
FkRBEE
ETBE 14
KEME 15
FIERBKEZ
BRPYE 16
FEELIH 17

RINBRR Z&E 18

Sk kNG

P 19
A — i £ (R 42 4

ERIKE 20
ERFBEE 34
mE/ (aEmE) 22
FREEERE
REBEE

AEHEZERE

RS 23
AHEEZE

TERK % 24
R U B 3K 25

JiE Ut B8 3 1 7] ;A 4
BAZE - EHe Rk
HtREEE 26
BEEKE 27
BHEAE R

RITFE K 28
BeREMBETER 28

nEBEERE
RBEE

KHRITER 29
RESRITER

SEEEY) 30
JEE 151 BR 3K 31
JRE 5+ AR A
ySR=GE=Ry) 32
ERWA - EEHEH
BREAR

H & 5 3E
JE 5 — B &

AR FRIE
e EEHIE
JE1F B8 38 A 7] ;U8
& {5 — 9 £k [R) 42

ERNIA

JE R IR 33

NN NN

Consolidated

2004
—EEME
HK$’000
FET

754,172
2,643,009

1,052,805
300,920

36

283,349

20,531
(151,363)

4,903,459

5,658,749

1,039,146
336,545
2,170

133,789
4,184

258,650
477,959

7,911,192

(598,938)

(1,358,814)
(662,854)

(828,128)
(1,314,930)
(448,087)

(1,192)
(5.667)
(479,818)
(391,006)

(353,051)

=E
2003
—ZTE=F
HK$°000
FET

39,163
2,558,124

1,515,985
581,016

770
141,124
4,072

4,840,254

3,417,222
940,580
309,204

3,138

169,561
4,492

309,732
350,247

5,504,176

(1,092,510)

(291,583)
(1,329,840)

(108,819)

(481,056)
(406,793)

(188,682)

Company
YNC

2004 2003
—EBME —TT=F
HKS'000  HK$'000
FET TET
833,769 797,649
833,769 797,649
422 422
860 1,996
1,282 2,418
(1,428) (896)



BALANCE SHEETS EE & &%
(As at 31st December 2004) (R—FZFMF+—H=+—H)

Consolidated Company
) YN
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EEME —TT=F ZEBEENFE —TT=F
Note HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
ft &t FHET TR FET TET

o)
HF
m
F]
i
a
=
>
Il
[l
L]
L]
JE|
_FF
_FF
#

Total current liabilities mBABRE (6,442,485)  (4,304,510) (1,428) (896)
Net current assets/ (liabilities) RBEE/ (AR FE 1,468,707 1,199,666 (146) 1,522
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 6,372,166 6,039,920 833,623 799,171
Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Long-term bank loans, RESRTER -
non-current portion JE5E B R 1 30 (1,547,805) (1,662,224) - =
Land cost payable, non-current & T A -
portion FEREEHD 32 (190,566) (11,847) = -
Due to a director N —REZHE 4 (10,000) (10,000) = =
Due to ultimate holding company  JEff & AR 2 %
RNEIFIA 4 (59,000) (32,000) = =
Deferred income, non-current EEWA
portion FERHIED 19 (49,640) (53,934) = =
Deferred taxation BRI 34 (1,142,430) (1,052,052) = =
Total non-current liabilities FERBAERE (2,999,441) (2,822,057) = =
Minority interests DEBRRER (118,956) (523,485) - -
3,253,769 2,694,378 833,623 799,171
Financed by: A5 & B
Share capital [ 35 100,300 100,200 100,300 100,200
Reserves B 37 3,153,469 2,594,178 733,323 698,971
Shareholders' equity e 3,253,769 2,694,378 833,623 799,171
CHU MANG YEE XIAO YAN XIA
KREK wRE
Chairman Director
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #3&

(For the year ended 31st December 2004) (B Z_—LEMF+_-A=+—HILFE)

Operating activities

Net cash inflow generated from
operations

Interest received

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Mainland China enterprise income
tax paid

Mainland China land appreciation
tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

Investing activities

Additions of fixed assets

Additions of properties under
development for long-term
investment

Acquisition of further interests in
subsidiaries pursuant to the
Major Transactions

Acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash acquired

Acquisition of investment in securities

Disposal of investment in securities

Increase in amounts due from
associated companies

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from related companies

Capital injection to a jointly controlled
entity

Decrease/(increase) in pledged/charged

bank deposits

Net cash outflow from investing

activities

Net cash outflow before financing

activities

BEED

REELZHE
A E B

B KF 8

ENEEMNE

B B AR ﬁ%% #

B e BKBE £ 3 52 (B B

RETDHZHERA
8

REED
BABEEEE
BARERY

REZBRTME

@TIE”%L*
ET Ll

i
RBHBAR

B 57 IR &
BABSRE
HeEBSRA
BRI 2 A SR S0

FE U B 3E X B 5UR
md/ ()
m—EARZHERIE

BEA/HLRITFR
w4/ (&)

REFDZHER HFH

METDAZRER L FE

Note HK$'000
Kz FET

38(a) 1,216,702
4,484

(21,526)

(296,636)

(647)

902,377

(723,575)

(289,907)

2, 38(c) (27,409)

38(d) (3,801)

(283)
943

968
(95,497)

51,082

(1,087,479)

(185,102)

BIRETMER

2003
—EE=F
HK$'000
FE& T

508,243
7,211
(9,369)

(208,751)

(4,644)

292,690

(15,935)

(461,052)

(110,950)
(943)

(620)

(373)

(28,698)

(618,571)

(325,881)



Financing activities
New short-term bank loans
Repayments of short-term bank loans
New long-term bank loans
Repayments of long-term bank loans
Advances from directors
Repayments to directors
Advances from related companies
Repayments to related companies
Advance from an associated company
Repayment to an associated company
Advances from a jointly controlled entity
Repayments to a jointly controlled entity

Advances from ultimate holding company

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Capital contributions from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow from financing
activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange translation

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 428 &mE &
(For the year ended 31st December 2004) (#Z —ZFZTWF+—-A=+—HIFFE)

BMETEE

i EHRTER
EBERHEETER
iR BARITER
BERBRTER
EEEX
EEEZHN
%L@ﬂﬁﬁ
EEBERARBRR
—Fﬁﬂﬁ%““?@m
EiE— Mg s Qa2

S 32 UNCIEEA
ERHE
ERAERE
BITROMERE
B BITRX
MBARZLH
BRERER
EETHBREZ
DR R

REEFBCRERAFRE

Re ki
FUNRELAEFEY

NEEXEH Y E

FREGIASEEY

B

Zh

—REAREHEREN
BE-FMARZEHNERD

ﬂ\

EEM M

Note
fit it

38(b)

38(e)

2004
—gEng
HK$°000
FET

473,890
(967,462)
1,552,642
(599,830)
4,111
(366)
52,441
(93,348)
(1,034)
431,317
(225,658)
27,000
(205,213)
(60,150)
1,170
(4)

4,365

(81,050)

312,821

127,719

350,247
()

477,959

2003
—ET=4F

— == —

HK$000
FAT

1,092,510
(1,108,633)
1,255,357
(499,675)

13,128
(15,394)
804,696
(892,278)
1,117
881,907
(909,127)
12,000
(164,072)
(40,080)

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_FH
_FH
#

44,714

(8,163)

468,007

142,126

208,368
(247)

350,247



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #r& e Z &5k

(For the year ended 31st December 2004) (B Z—ZFZFF+_-H=+—HILFZ)

T 2004 2003

g —gEME - TT=F

o

= HK$'000 HK$'000

g FET FET

8

% Total equity as at 1st January R—A—HBZERBE 2,694,378 2,444,220

I

o

= Profit attributable to shareholders {5 2R 11 4 611,250 315,354

Q

3 Investment property revaluation reserve HEREMFRES

(‘D . = s, Al

2 transferred to the profit and loss account  EBHE KX 2K EWME

> upon disposal of investment properties EhEE (75,074) (38,388)

3

C

a

? Surplus on revaluation of investment REMEEMHRBKFRE

xe)

e properties, net 82,206 13,519

S

= Payment of dividends EA B & (60,150) (40,080)
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of BT FT 15 518

share issue expenses HIBRR M ETH 32 1,166 =

Translation adjustments BE 5 3R B (7) (247)
Total equity as at 31st December RTZA=T—HzE=EH 3,253,769 2,694,378



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 %5 B 5

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
on 24th July 1997 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Its shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 27th May
1998.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associated company and jointly controlled entity are principally
engaged in investment holding and property development,
investment and management.

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS

On 23rd June 2004, the Group entered into conditional agreements
to acquire (i) further interests in nine subsidiaries at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$331,255,000, and (ii) further
interests in a jointly controlled entity at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$468,775,000. These acquisitions are regarded
as major transactions (“Major Transactions”) pursuant to the rules
governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and a circular dated 30th June 2004 was issued to
shareholders to provide details of these acquisitions.

The sale and purchase agreements in respect of the acquisition of
the additional interests in the nine subsidiaries were completed
during the year. Accordingly, the Group has recognised these
acquisitions, including the proportion of the fair value differences
attributable to such increases in the Group's interests in these
subsidiaries and the negative goodwill.

The acquisition of further interests in a jointly controlled entity has
not yet completed at 31st December 2004 because, among others,
the transfer of business ownership has not been completed.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("new HKFRSs"”) which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2005. The Group has not early
adopted these new HKFRSs in the accounts for the year ended 31st
December 2004. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact
on its results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
accounts are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
investment in securities.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis
as the Company’s Directors and the Group’s management are
confident that the Group’s short-term bank borrowings and
current portion of long-term bank borrowings will either be
rolled over or replaced by new sources of financing when they
become due.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries, together with the Group’s share
of post-acquisition results and reserves of its associated
companies and jointly controlled entities under the equity
method of accounting. The results of subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account from their effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's
share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill
or negative goodwill and any related cumulative currency
translation adjustments.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

INTANGIBLES
() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the Group's share of the aggregate fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired at the date
of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as an intangible
asset and is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated economic life of five to ten years.
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3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INTANGIBLES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(i)

(iif)

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's
share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired over the cost of acquisition and is presented in
the same balance sheet classification as goodwill. To the
extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of
future losses and expenses that are identified in the
Group's plan for the acquisition and can be measured
reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities
at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative
goodwill is recognised in the profit and loss account when
the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any
remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair
values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised
in the profit and loss account over the period of utilisation
of those assets; negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of those non-monetary assets is recognised in the
profit and loss account immediately.

Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of any intangible asset is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting power;
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the
board of directors, or to cast majority votes at the meetings of
the board of directors.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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3 EEEFHX (&)
(d) BEEE (&)

(e)

(i) BEE
BEENEASEERRBETE
HBFEEZ A TER UK
AZYHE WHBELAZEBED
HEE2IRBERZEERER
AE-HMEABREAEHASEY
WEEFTSINE # B2 Bat A K E
BEEY - TR S E - #
TRERKBEB ZAHAE
& BZBHamERERAR
EERAXRTABREE - EF1
THRBMBEBEIZIEEREEZR
FEZEGHAEEE  HEZE?
BE 2 W B3 N S 15 A] {55 PR AF ER R
BRRER ZERBARSHEE
BEEZATEZEEE A
BERERRER -

(ifi) I EE R E
WEEREBRTIHRMNE  AE
GEERPEEMREE - LAA
B R 2 AT W Bl 8RR o

B S 2 F
WEBRANZERAKRBER KA E
EHIE BN LR R S AR
PEEHREER  ZONEBRES
SMARZHENL  INEFEEAS L
ERZHREENERE -

RARBZEERABRA  RHMEL
ARV Jh DA B AN BB (B 85 18 R 51
e MBARMERENRE RRER
BEFARRBRE °

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#




T
o
ke
w
3
=)
O
o
<
08
o
ke
3
®
3
2
T
o
Q
=)
@
w
{—
3
=
@
Q
c
>
=)
>
C
Q
el
@
ke
9
3
N
o
()
5

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

An associated company is a company over which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its financial and operating policy decisions.

In the consolidated accounts, investments in associated
companies are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, whereby the investments are initially recorded at
cost and are adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition results, distributions received, other
necessary alterations in the Group's proportionate interests
arising from changes in the equity of associated companies
that have not been included in the profit and loss accounts of
the associated companies, amortisation of the difference
between the cost of investment and the Group’s share of the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired at
the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of associated
companies are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

CONTRACTUAL JOINT VENTURES

A contractual joint venture is an entity established between
the Group and one or more other parties for a pre-determined
period of time, with the rights and obligations of the joint
venture partners being governed by a contract. If the Group is
able to govern and control the financial and operating policies
of the contractual joint venture so as to obtain benefits from
its activities, such joint venture is considered as a de facto
subsidiary and is accounted for as a subsidiary. If the Group
can only exercise significant influence over the contractual joint
venture, such joint venture is accounted for as an associated
company.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(i)

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity. In the
consolidated accounts, investment in jointly controlled entities
is accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and is
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s share of the post-
acquisition results, distributions received, other necessary
alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest in jointly
controlled entities arising from changes in equity of jointly
controlled entities that have not been included in the profit
and loss account of the jointly controlled entities, amortistation
of the difference between the cost of investment and the
Group's share of the aggregate fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired at the date of acquisition (goodwill), and
any impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
results of jointly controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS

A joint venture which does not involve the establishment of a
separate entity but involves the joint control and ownership by
the Group and other parties of assets contributed to, or
acquired for the purpose of, the joint venture is accounted for
as a jointly controlled asset. In the consolidated accounts, the
Group's share of jointly controlled assets and any liabilities
incurred jointly with other joint venture partners are recognised
and classified according to the nature of the relevant items.
Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output
of jointly controlled assets is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group, whilst the Group's share of expenses in
respect of jointly controlled assets is recognised as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() FIXED ASSETS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Major expenditures on
modifications and betterments of fixed assets which will
increase their future economic benefits are capitalised,
while expenditures on maintenance and repairs are
expensed when incurred. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of each asset over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates of depreciation are as
follows:

Leasehold land 2% (lease term)
Buildings 2%

Furniture and office equipment  20%

Motor vehicles 20% to 30%

The depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the methods and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from fixed assets.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is investments in land and
buildings on which construction work has not been
completed and which, upon completion, management
intend to hold for the long term as hotels. These
properties are carried at cost which includes land costs,
construction expenditures, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties and other
direct costs less any accumulated impairment losses. On
completion, the properties are transferred to the
appropriate categories of fixed assets at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress
until they are completed and put into commercial use.

Impairment and gain or loss on sale

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that assets included in fixed assets,
construction in progress and properties under
development for long-term investment are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the
profit and loss account.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

(0]

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
(iii) Impairment and gain or loss on sale (Continued)

The gain and loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than
investment properties is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in
respect of which construction work and development have
been completed and which are held for their investment
potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm'’s length.

These properties are included in the balance sheet at their
open market value on the basis of an annual valuation by
independent qualified valuers. The valuations are incorporated
in the annual accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to
the investment properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in
valuation are first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter are debited to operating
profit. Any subsequent increases are credited to operating
profit up to the amount previously debited.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the investment properties
revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties unless
the unexpired lease term is 20 years or less, in which case
depreciation is provided on the then carrying value over the
unexpired lease term.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development for sale, the pre-sale of which
has not commenced, are included in current assets at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Properties under
development for sale, the pre-sale of which has commenced,
are included in current assets at cost plus attributable profits,
less foreseeable losses and sale instalments received and
receivable. Properties under development for long-term
investment are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of properties under development consists of land
costs, construction expenditures, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business as determined by
management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions, less further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and selling and marketing expenses.

No depreciation is provided on properties under development.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

TESTHE (B)

()

EE&E (&)

(iii) BIBEK L ERE (&)
HEBRTEECRRREHEE
ZHERSFREAEEECE
BONBRRPER -

(k) ®EU=

V)

REMEDNRTIHWEBFCERIRE
ETRIRERBACESRFAIEE
ERERBZIHWEET WUl
WABERFRUNEFRIRITERE °

RENERRBEEBETZBUEE
RERAFAMEFERIE - AR
RESHAFERRE - HELESE
AREMEEMHRHE  HEREESL
SEENEREAAAREABEZME
RERH  TNERELERMNHH
B EREREEZEERTALE
wA EEBSBARRAMBRER
R e

EHERBVMER  BREVEER
FEBRORAGEIR I CERER
FEEHESNECRARER -

BREMETHRNE  RIFBO R
06U TFHZEENZHGEALD
W FHEHRITE ©

BRERTUWE
WARFABBENAREEZERTY
EDBERAERAZRFEMETH
REENARDEE - KCHRBRREE
MR E CBRRFNEEKAS
BaarRrIRRLcBERE RKRE
WHHED BTN ARBEE - F1F
RRRBZERFNETIEALER
EEMRERBEREIE -

BZRPMERRBRLMAR - 2
AXhAREZSNEMERELL
BERAREMERKA - IERF
BENRAEEBRARTEREZ2RE
BHREENGAEE  REBEHE
RIWELENEMA AR RHE LD
GHREERITE -

AEBYERERPYESRENE -

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#




T
o
ke
w
3
=)
O
o
<
08
o
ke
3
®
3
2
T
o
Q
=)
@
w
{—
3
=
@
Q
c
>
=)
>
C
Q
el
@
ke
9
3
N
o
()
5

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) LAND PENDING DEVELOPMENT

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Land pending development is land acquired and pending a
definite plan to be developed for sale or long-term investment.
It is stated at cost less any impairment losses. Land costs
include land premium costs, site clearance costs and other
direct costs of bringing the land to a condition suitable for
development. When the intention is clear and development
has commenced, land to be developed for sale will be classified
as properties under development for sale, land to be developed
for long-term investment will be classified as properties under
development for long-term investment, and land to be
developed as hotels to be held for the long-term will be
classified as construction in progress.

No depreciation is provided on land pending development.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of completed properties for
sale consists of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business
as determined by management with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, less selling and marketing expenses.

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Securities that are held for the purpose of generating a profit
from short-term fluctuations in price are classified as
investment in securities, and are included in the balance sheet
at their fair values. All changes in the fair values of investment
in securities and gains and losses on disposal of investment in
securities are recognised in the profit and loss account when
they arise.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent
they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in the
balance sheet are stated net of such provision, if any.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation,
legal or constructive, as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligations, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value
of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
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3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

(r)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to accounts. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets
are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE RECOGNITION

Turnover consists of (i) pre-sale and sale of properties, (ii)
rental income, and (iii) property management fees, property
design fees and marketing consultancy fees. Revenue is
recognised when the outcome of a transaction can be
measured reliably and when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group.
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

(i)  Pre-sale and sale of properties

Pre-sale of properties under development for sale under
legally-binding agreements is recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the development of the
properties, with the profit recognised restricted to the
amount of instalments received. No revenue from pre-
sale of properties is recognised until the construction has
progressed to a stage when completion of the properties
and the ultimate realisation of profit can be reliably
estimated. Sale of completed properties held for sale is
recognised when a legally-binding agreement has been
executed.

When a purchaser defaults in the payment of instalments
and the Group exercises its right to terminate the sale,
the revenue and the related profit previously recognised
are reversed and the instalments received and forfeited
are credited to the profit and loss account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

TURNOVER AND REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(if)  Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

(iii) Property management fees, property design fees
and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding
and the interest rates applicable.

Deferred income represented amounts received for which the
earning process has not been completed.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the
profit and loss account over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Grants
relating to the purchase of fixed assets are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

TAXATION

Individual companies within the Group provide for profits tax
on the basis of their profits for financial reporting purposes,
adjusted for income and expense items which are not
assessable or deductible for profits tax purposes.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts.
Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COSTS

Costs of advertising and promotion are expensed as incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as incurred.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisitions, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred.

OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases represent leases under which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets remain
with the lessors. Rental payments under operating leases are
charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant leases.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(2)

Individual companies within the Group maintain their books
and records in the primary currencies of their respective
operations (“functional currencies”). In the accounts of the
individual companies, transactions in other currencies during
the year are translated into the respective functional currencies
at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the time of
the transactions; monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rate of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with
in the profit and loss account of the individual companies.

The Group prepares consolidated accounts in Hong Kong
dollars. For the purpose of consolidation, all the assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet
date; all income and expense items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the applicable average exchange rates during
the year. Exchange differences arising from such translation
are dealt with as movements in cumulative currency translation
adjustments.

SEGMENT REPORTING

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and business
segments be presented as the secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment
assets consist primarily of all of the Group’s operating assets,
while segment liabilities consist primarily of all of the Group's
operating liabilities. Capital expenditure comprises additions
to investment properties, properties under development for
long-term investment, fixed assets and construction in
progress, including those arising from acquisitions of
subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover, total
assets and capital expenditure are based on the district in
which the assets are located.

In prior year, the Group presented business segments as the
primary reporting format. With effect from the year ended
31st December 2004, the Group has determined that
geographical segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and business segments be presented as the secondary
reporting format, following the Group's diversification into
more geographical locations for which information the
directors consider that it is more meaningful.
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3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3
(aa) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at
cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, bank deposits/cash investments with a maturity of
three months or less from the date of investment and bank
overdrafts.

4  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or common significant influence.

(@) The Group had the following significant transactions with
related companies:

Property design fees received/receivable B U2,/ & Yt — i L R 42 4 E B2

from a jointly controlled entity ZUERGE
Rental income received/receivable from B U/ fE U — A& A &
a related company (i) ik ON()
Property construction fees paid/payable 21,/ fE{f BE A &l
to related companies (i) ZYEREE()
Property design fees paid/payable to B/ EN—HBRE
related companies (i) NEZMERTE()
Communication network installation Bt/ BER R
fees paid/payable to related ZERERAE
companies (i) ERTRRE(G)
Decoration charges paid/payable to Bt/ —HEEEAR
a related company (i) ZEEE)
Office rentals paid/payable to Bt/ A —HEEEAR
related companies (i) ZHAEAL()
Property management fees paid/payable 21,/ fE{T B8 E R 7
to related companies (i) ZHEEEE()
Note —

(i)  These companies are a minority shareholder of certain
subsidiaries of the Company or subsidiaries of the minority
shareholder.

In the opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group's
management, the above related party transactions were
conducted in the normal course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with terms of
contracts entered into by the Group and the related parties.
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2004 2003
S 1L —FT=%
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET
12,000 -
2,661 637
2,090,000 2,132,000
15,248 24,063
5,227 443
1,464 850
4,434 3,670
5,023 1,926
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

T 4 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4 BEAEIRES ()
2 (b) Details of the balances with directors and related companies (b) BEBZEREEDRLHHES
(% are:
>
§ Maximum
g balance
g outstanding
§ during the year
2 2004 2003 FERAREE
2 —gEnF -—TT=fF BE L
5 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
z FHET FET FHBT
C
Q
§ Due from related companies PE W B A B R E
% Amount due from minority e AR A R & T B
S shareholders of certain NAZVERE
subsidiaries of the Company RzELERR
and subsidiaries of these ZH B ARz HE
minority shareholders 2,170 2,929 3,994
Amount due from a related ERBARR—%
company, which is beneficially E=Enibc—
owned by a director of the fE &R Al
Company Z FIE - 209 209
2,170 3,138
Due to directors EREERE
Mr. Chu Mang Yee BRI E 15,003 11,258
Mr. Au Wai Kin BMEZTE 664 664
15,667 11,922
Less: Non-current portion B FEREHMH
Mr. Chu Mang Yee miKEE (10,000) (10,000)
5,667 1,922




4 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Details of the balances with directors and related companies
are: (Continued)

ENBEATRE

Due to related companies

Amount due to minority ERARARETHER
shareholders of certain ZOHRRERZE
subsidiaries of the Company DEBREZ

and subsidiaries of these W8 2 &l 2 FIE
minority shareholders
— purchase consideration —WERE
(Note 38(c)) (K1 7%38(c))
~ advances — 8K
Amount due to a related company, EFARF—ZE=
which is beneficially owned by ERBEZ
a director of the Company — B E QR HIE

In addition, as at 31st December 2004, the Group had accounts
payable of approximately HK$123,344,000 (2003:
HK$526,502,000) due to subsidiaries of minority shareholders
of certain subsidiaries of the Company in respect of property
construction fees.

As at 31st December 2004, all outstanding balances with
directors, a jointly controlled entity, an associated company,
and the ultimate holding company were unsecured, non-
interest bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms,
except that HK$10,000,000 (2003: HK$10,000,000) due to a
director and HK$59,000,000 (2003: HK$32,000,000) due to
the ultimate holding company were not repayable within one
year.

As at 31st December 2004, all outstanding balances with
related companies were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms, except that
approximately HK$304,993,000 (2003: Nil) due to related
companies was payable by 12 monthly instalments (Note 38(c)).

As at 31st December 2004, approximately HK$263,639,000
(2003: HK$142,123,000) of the Group's investment properties
(Note 15), approximately HK$62,384,000 (2003:
HK$191,085,000) of the Group's properties under
development for long-term investment (Note 16) and
approximately HK$9,556,000 (2003: Nil) of the Group's
properties under development for sale (Note 23) were pledged
as collateral for bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled
entity, respectively.

3
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4 BAE
(b)

AEREZ (&)
HERNBEBELRIGRNFS - (B)

2004 2003
—gEng —zE=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
304,993 -
174,256 215,732

569 -

479,818 215,732
B R-FEEmE+-A= +—

B AEEEAGAQBETHEAR
DEBRR BRIz MERSE %%ﬁ
123,344,000 T (Z 2 T = & :
526,502,000/ 7T) °
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F ) AD12{8 A51E (FT7E38(c) o
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B
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 81 %5 B 5

4  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4 BEAETRS ()
() As at 31st December 2004, the Group provided guarantees to  RZZEZEF+-A=+—8 K&

Bt —HERZEHEBRFEARD
Al A& (=TT =4 : 94,340,000/
7T) % 4180,189,0008 £ (Z T T =
F : 85,849,000/ L) Z $R1TE F et
ER (M E41) o

banks for loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity and
related companies of nil (2003: HK$94,340,000) and
approximately HK$80,189,000 (2003: HK$85,849,000),
respectively (Note 41).
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5 TURNOVER AND REVENUE 5 EXEBEEkWRZ
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Turnover =
— Sale of properties —HEWE 4,338,019 3,238,906
— Rental income - A& WA 42,744 35,487
— Property management fees —MEERE 69,150 51,529
Total turnover BEXE 4,449,913 3,325,922
Other revenue H i U2 55
— Interest income — F B YA 4,484 7,211
— Government grants (i) — B & B 113,222
117,706 7,211
Total revenues B = 4,567,619 3,333,133

Note -

(i) This represents grants received from government bureaus in mainland

China.

ftat —

() ZABETRERERFGERRTZED -



PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

,S—_:'E’“ il

4 B
Profit from operations is determined after charging and crediting BERMDENBREFATIZER&E $
the following items: E ;’;g
2004 2003 2
—EEME —TT=F &
HK$000 HK$'000 =
T FHET o
L]
After charging - E ikt — -]E?
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRA(BREESHE) Q
emoluments) (Note 8) (R K1:E8) 143,626 118,729
Advertising expenses EBEE 135,497 143,372
Operating lease rentals in respect MELEHOMEE
of premises 5,114 4,466
Depreciation of fixed assets ETBEENE 8,759 8,423
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEZLBE 255 486
Amortisation of goodwill (included in BoHpmE
general and administrative expenses) (RRE—MRETERER) 5,233 2,936
Provision for amount due from an JRE Uiz — ] Bk & 2 m] K18
associated company i - 620
Net exchange loss BE K &5 1805 549 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT 2 1,500 1,000
After crediting — EGTA =
Rental income, less outgoings HEWA FBRZH) 38,470 31,938
Gain on disposal of investment properties & #% & ¥ % W & 127,866 66,335
Gain on listed investment in securities HEREFSF W 352 722
Dividend income from listed investments ~ EM & &k E WA 139 69
Net exchange gain BEE b Ui 25 7 58 - 196
FINANCE COSTS B 7 BR AR
2004 2003
“ZENF ZTT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAFANZEESR
repayable within five years B IRITE RF S 205,213 164,072
Less: amount capitalised as part of o BRERES
the cost of properties under e )
development i (191,838) (159,792)
13,375 4,280

=

Ft-A=1+—HULFEH

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised during the REE-ZTZTNO
year ended 31st December 2004 was approximately 5.7% per REAMEBEERANTEAFERNENRST%
annum (2003: 5.6% per annum). (Z2Z=F : FFE56%) °



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

8 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8 BIRSN(BHEEEHS)

T

g EMOLUMENTS)

o 2004 2003
> —EEmE —ET=F
g HKS$000 HK$'000
g FHET FET
ol

§ Salaries and allowances e KOER 89,893 87,085
= Sales commission and bonus HEME I 39,166 22,211
% Pension costs BRERA

< — Defined contribution plans (Note 42) -~ REHREE (F7F42) 14,557 9,391
)§ — Provision for long service payment - RER® S BE 10 42
C

a

g 143,626 118,729
O

g 9 DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EBEEREMTHAEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (a) EEM=E
Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Bft/EEAARESHHEFHB T
Company are: T ¢
2004 2003
—EEME —TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Fees for executive directors HITESEHNES - =
Fees for independent non-executive B FEHTEE
directors okiaken 210 180
Other emoluments for executive HITESH
directors Hi i<
— Salaries and allowances —Fre RoER 4,360 8,832
— Retirement contributions —RARE R 36 56
4,606 9,068
A director agreed to waive his emoluments with effect from BE_ZTTNF+-A=+—BLFE  —
st January 2003, which amounted to approximately AEZRAERA_ZZE=F—A—HERED
HK$240,000 (2003: HK$240,000) during the year ended 31st 240,000/ 7 (ZZFZ = F : 240,0007% 7T) B
December 2004. T e



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

9 DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EERSRITHRAEME (A)

)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) e
(a) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) () EE=M= (&) ?i‘g
Analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of directors and BEZ A NEEMeRBIE S NEZHEHIT
emolument ranges is as follows: W =
S
1
2004 2003 I.I
—EEMF —ET=F o
A
Executive directors HITES -]E;
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T 4 5 ﬁ
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 - =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7t £ 3,000,000/ 7T - 2
Independent non-executive directors B EHITE S
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,0007% 7T 3 3
9 11
(b) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (b) EEBREHAT
The five highest paid individuals consisted of: hEERHFALTEE
2004 2003
—ERNE —TT=F
Number of directors EEUN- 3 4
Number of employees EBAH 2 1
5 5
The emoluments paid/payable to the highest paid individuals EfN /BB ARNAREENGRS &
who are directors of the Company have been included in Note ATHE#MEE MR XK z9a) o 217
9(a) above. Details of emoluments paid/payable to the SEMESRALTHSFEBOT
remaining individuals are:
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances ERF& KRR 1,686 1,000
Retirement contributions ERE R = =
1,686 1,000
The emoluments fall within the following band: B F AT AR -
2004 2003
—2EMmE —TER=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2 1




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

9 DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c)  No emolument was paid to the directors of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

10 TAXATION

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss
account represents:
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Company and subsidiaries R Aal kA& 2 F]

Current taxation REIFIE
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH
Mainland China enterprise income tax B REEREEH
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K B g (E

Deferred taxation relating to the HEL )/ (BE) THEE
origination/(reversal) of temporary EBZELH IR
differences
Mainland China enterprise income tax B REEREBH
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K B M3 (E

Jointly controlled entity HE 5 & B2

Current taxation AETIE
Mainland China enterprise income tax Bl K FE > BT 35t
Mainland China land appreciation tax Bl A F £ 3 2 (8 ¢

(a) HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

(b) OVERSEAS INCOME TAX

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies Acts
of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted
from British Virgin Islands income taxes. Subsidiaries established
and operated in mainland China are subject to mainland China
enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% (2003: 33%).

O EERSRITHAEME (&)

€ ARAEZHIRARSHFATLER
FERME ARSI EMAKE AKX
SENIERBERMAE -

10 #IR
REGBRDRRTHRZHBARKE

2004 2003
—gmE —2P=fF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT T8
18,087 12,704
457,798 208,506
391 3,359
(170,939) (45,375)
118,697 18,496
424,034 197,690
24,869 27,884
25,028 26,426
49,897 54,310
473,931 252,000

(a) EENEH

BB MER T E Rt E R S A
17 5%(ZEZ=4F : 17.5%) =X
B o

(b) BIFREH
ARBEERCEMBERERREE -
E-RFZA -ERBRIESMKL
MHBLARNRERBRE XS ERK
BRARDEEMAN » 8tk - BF#%
RBELERESMEH - ARRANTE
REERRSL RS & HO MY /8 A B13233% (=
TE=F :33%) IHRGRPERE
LERAFH -



10 TAXATION (Continued) 10

11

(c) MAINLAND CHINA LAND APPRECIATION TAX

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including costs of land and development and
construction expenditures.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the enterprise income tax

rate in mainland China, where the majority of the Group’s
operations was carried out, and the reconciliation was as follows:

Profit before taxation B % Bl A

Calculated at mainland China enterprise ~ BHBIAKERERERHTE33%

income tax rate of 33% (2003: 33%) (ZET=F : 33%) 5t &
Effect of =2
- different tax rates in other jurisdiction ~ — E Al FSEHE & A [F B R
— income not subject to taxation —THARBA
— expenses not deductible for income — ARz
tax purposes
- land appreciation tax deductible for —AMBIERGTERER
calculation of income tax purposes Rigz T igER
- utilisation of previously unrecognised —PABEARAERHIEERE
tax losses
- deferred tax assets not recognised —RARZEERIEEE
Land appreciation tax T E
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 11

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit
of approximately HK$93,436,000 (2003: HK$93,554,000) dealt with
in the accounts of the Company.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

BiE ()

(c) HEKBE L 1 EH
FERRE L i ERG Lin g E - AD
i & 55 b 2 AT 1S 5K JE HIBR BT H1R 2E B
(BELHERATREBERY) @ &
T E30%ZE 60% U °

AN 2 B A ) R R X e B KR (R
SERRBAEBRFBEKREET) <BEM
BRBEAE EREBEMER KB -
AlEWT

2004 2003
—ETNEF —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET &L
1,189,360 635,942
392,489 209,861
(16,079) (12,706)
(15,920) (127)
7,527 3,378
(47,558) (15,933)
(17,259) (20,869)
26,615 40,115
329,815 203,719
144,116 48,281
473,931 252,000
% R FE A & A

RERERGA BN BEADBREE R &R
B 3% A 4993,436,0008 T (Z 2T = 4 ¢
93,554,000/ 7T.) ©

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the Group's profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$611,250,000 (2003: HK$315,354,000).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
number of approximately 1,002,749,000 (2003: 1,002,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year. The diluted earnings per
share is based on approximately 1,002,846,000 (2003:
1,002,096,000) ordinary shares which is the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average number of approximately 97,000 (2003: 96,000) ordinary
shares deemed to be issued at no consideration if all outstanding
options had been exercised.

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2004 2003
—EENE —2E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Interim dividend of HK$0.03 HHIR B R mAR0.038 T

(2003: HK$0.02) per ordinary share (ZZZ=%F :0.0287T) 30,090 20,040

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.06 BEABARSER T EIR0.06/4 T
(2003: HK$0.03) per ordinary share (Z2Z= i 0.03% 7T 60,180 30,060
90,270 50,100

13 BREF
BRERNKEERF HIEALERRENG
F # 611,250, ooo,%yc (ZE2ZT =F :
315,354,000/ 1) 51 &

FRREREFITIAFAE BT E B MNET
5 #1,002,749,0000 (ZE T = F
1,002,000,000H§)§+*’“ TR EAF T A
#71,002,846, oooa& BR(ZEZT=F

1,002,096,0000%) st & @ BIERE BT LR
RS AN S 29 SR A0 b a0 i AR AT 2 BE AR A E
TEREUNTREZR T EBR 2 METH
204797,000/% (ZZZ =4 : 96,000%) °



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

14 FIXED ASSETS 14 BEEE
Consolidated
me
Leasehold Furniture
land and Construction  and office Motor
buildings in progress equipment vehicles Total
HEL P19
kT EEIR PLAERE "E M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT FET TFET T FAET
Cost XA
Beginning of year F 4 7,083 - 24,904 33,353 65,340
Additions 1% - 713,970 5,965 3,640 723,575
Fair value adjustments BEFERS

pursuant to the Major AEATLE

Transactions (Note 38(c)  (K17#38(c) = 373 = = 373
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& i & 2 7]

(Note 38(d)) (K22 38(d)) - - 75 - 75
Disposals H & - - (144) (135) (279)
End of year FI& 7,083 714,343 30,800 36,858 789,084

Accumulated depreciation Z&HITE
Beginning of year F 4 1,186 - 11,332 13,659 26,177
Charge for the year AEEHE 143 - 3,166 5,450 8,759
Disposals it & - = (24) = (24)
End of year F 1,329 = 14,474 19,109 34,912
Net book value REFE
End of year FIR 5,754 714,343 16,326 17,749 754,172
Beginning of year F1 5,897 - 13,572 19,694 39,163

The leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and are

held under long-term leases of over 50 years.

Analysis of construction in progress is:

MELHREFTHUREE RRIEEB505F
MERBENRSA -

ERIESWWT:

2004 2003
= Lk s
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR

Land costs
Construction expenditure
Borrowing costs capitalised

+ MR
IRER%
BEAREERE

41,236 =
670,527 =
2,580 =

714,343 =

Construction in progress represents hotel properties under
construction, which will be held for the long term. All construction
in progress are located in mainland China and are located on land
held under land use rights expiring from 2042 through 2043.

FRIBERMBEEZEEZRBIENE - 7
BEERIRUAFRBEARE  LERMARER
—EN - RN =FHEER 2 THE
RERsE 2 TH -

o)
HF
m
F]
i
a
=
>
Il
[l
L]
L]
JE|
_FF
_FF
#
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Beginning of year F 1)

Transfer from properties under ERERERIRE
development for long-term investment ZERTYME

Disposals &

Surplus on revaluation EARpags

End of year FR

All investment properties are located in mainland China and are
located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2066
through 2074. They were revalued as at 31st December 2004 by
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers,
on an open market value basis, with the related surplus, net of
provision for relevant taxes and minority interests, recorded as
investment property revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December 2004, approximately HK$836,580,000 (2003:
HK$914,552,000) and approximately HK$263,639,000 (2003:
HK$142,123,000) of the investment properties were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 43(a)) and bank
loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity (Note 4(e)), respectively.

The Group leases out certain investment properties under operating
leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years, with an option
to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. During the year ended 31st December 2004, the
gross rental income from investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$42,744,000 (2003: HK$31,026,000). As at 31st
December 2004, the Group’s future rental income under non-
cancellable operating leases was as follows:

Not later than one year —FR"

Later than one year and not later than —ZEZRFRN
five years

Later than five years HF®

15 REYHE
Consolidated
Re

2004 2003
341 -3 —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FE T
2,558,124 2,625,600
32,878 26,119
(219,320) (118,547)
271,327 24,952
2,643,009 2,558,124

FrEREME AR B K RE KA R IRR
ZERNANFET L NF HEE R L
RERAZ M - MARBEMEER_-ZFZ
=FE+Z A=+ -BAcERBUMEME
BRITERARMSEREEENGE  BH
BA(MBREATIERER D BRRER) )
FAREMEEHFEENA

RZEZTWFF+ZA=Z+—8 "8
836,580,000 L (= & T = & :
914,552,000/ 7t.) & 49263,639,000/4 7T (=
TE=F ¢ 1@JBO%%%)%&§%¥E
EREAREBRITEE (RHH43() &
MR EEARITER (R E4eE) B
I o

AEERBCERNHAE TREME 1)
WHEBA—ZE-+4F TEEBREBENERD
MIEREY - SEOBERERAES - ©
HE_ZZTNGE+-_A=-+—HIEFEN "
REEBEMENEES BEL HA2,744,0008
T (ZET = :31,026,000870) - R
ENF+_A=+—8 ' AEERETATH
HMAEROMARESHALT

Consolidated

#4
2004 2003
S LLE: “TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT
42,254 33,248
140,328 130,182
109,193 135,254
291,775 298,684



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

16 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG- 16 HERBBECRRFYE I
TERM INVESTMENT i
Consolidated Al
&a
2004 2003 af
=t £ 3. F3 —ET=f 5
HK$°000 HK$°000 g
FET BT |ﬁ|
AN
Beginning of year F 1) 1,515,985 1,146,549 %&i
Additions 1% 373,433 558,190 ﬁ
Fair value adjustments pursuant to the BREFEXHHE L
Major Transactions (Note 38(c)) REE (K #38(c) 13,953 =
Transfer from land pending development £ %5 3 & £ i 5 46,170 23,334
Transfer to investment properties HESKEYE (32,878) (26,119)
Transfer to properties under development HEEA[HHE 7 HEHRYE
for sale (863,858) (185,969)
End of year FIR 1,052,805 1,515,985
All properties under development for long-term investment are FIERERRRE 2 Z#EHRMEHUNHE
located in mainland China. ABE -
As at 31st December 2004, approximately HK$367,176,000 (2003: RZEENFEF+-_A=+—8 " 4
HK$391,912,000) and approximately HK$62,384,000 (2003: 367,176,000 © ( = & & = F :
HK$191,085,000) of the properties under development for long- 391,912,000/ 7T) K& #162,384,000/% 7T (=
term investment were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking TE = : 191,085,000/ ) ZFEREIK
facilities (Note 43(b)) and bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled BZBEETRYED DRI BERER ZRTT
entity (Note 4(e)), respectively. EE (RHE430) R —MERESEE 2R

TEE 2R M (RHE4eE)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

LAND PENDING DEVELOPMENT

Beginning of year F 1)
Additions E 0
Transfer to properties under development HE&EE#H{ERIRE

for long-term investment ZERTYME

Transfer to properties under development %5 % = 7] fit 4§ & ~ B¢ & oh
for sale ES

End of year FH

Land pending development is located in mainland China. As at 31st
December 2004, land pending development of approximately
HK$300,920,000 (2003: HK$289,568,000) was in the process of
applying for formal land use rights and nil (2003: HK$291,448,000)
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2067
through 2072.

As at 31st December 2004, none (2003: HK$83,678,000) of the
land pending development was pledged as collateral for the Group's
banking facilities.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

LMD - AR
FE Ui Fff B 2 B 5R0R

Unlisted shares, at cost
Due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and not repayable within one year.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 2004 are
set out on pages 119 to 124.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st December 2004.

18

FRE L
Consolidated
Re
2004 2003
—EEmE —TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL Fi& T
581,016 311,458
637,752 533,934
(46,170) (23,334)
(871,678) (241,042)
300,920 581,016
HFERIMUNFREARE RZZTTHF+

_H +—H - #4300,920,000/8 T (ZEE
= : 289,568,000/ 0) WA HE T HIEE
Rt AE  YE(ZEZ=F :

291,448,000 7T) RIEH SNt EFE-T
- EFHEEm T ERESA 2 i

RZEZMFE+_A=+—H ¥&E(Z
—;i-%ﬁmom%nﬂﬁﬁﬁimeﬁ
BEAEEBRTEEZEAR -

R BRARNIRE
Company
YNl
2004 2003
=L L ==
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
74,900 74,900
758,869 722,749
833,769 797,649
EYMBEARFEREEAR 2R REAR
—FREE -

—EENF+-_A=+—HHNEEHRER
AIFBEHREI119E 1248

REZ-_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFER
ERRRE - SHBARMEERERD T
EEEX -
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20

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

Share of net assets of an unlisted PG U R — R JE LT B & A A

associated company at acquisition ZFEE

Share of undistributed post-acquisition MG R R D B EE

results

Details of the associated company as at 31st December 2004 are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

19 R—EBERTR 2RE

Consolidated

#4
2004 2003
—gemE —2P=f
HK$000 HK$'000
FAT T
1,888 1,888
(1,852) (1,118)
36 770

REZTMET A=+ —ABERAZH
BwmT

Place of Issued Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable Principal
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group activity
AL & BRITR FEEERL
NCECE EEME BERAE BREBDL TEXB
Directly Indirectly
B %
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural mainland China Rmb5,000,000 = 24% Inactive
Development Company Limited alei N AR #5,000,0007T EmE

BREAHEXILERBFRRA

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Investment in a jointly controlled entity represents investment in a
contractual joint venture, Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate
Limited (“GZQREL"). GZQREL is established in mainland China with
an operating period of 20 years up to January 2018 to develop
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, mainland
China. Under the joint venture agreement, the Group is required to
contribute 57.14% of the capital of GZQREL and is entitled to one-
third of the voting power in GZQREL. It is entitled to share 40% of
the profit of GZQREL but has to assume 57.14% of any losses of
GZQREL, and is entitled to a distribution of 40% of GZQREL's assets
upon expiry of the operating period.

20 R—REHEEZEFERB2RE
R—TEREFEE 2R EEAESERE
MK IEEHEMESRAR ([E]) 2&%E
(BHE—HANEGELE) - BHRHBEK
BERY  RERAE—_Z—NF—AIF ' BH
206 EREEHARBEMRPBRAEER
BEMZYE - BEAELERZ  A5E
EEDEGH ST LN ERTE G ER
EEH=S—RE#E - AEBENAEDER
W2A0%5H  HEEAREGEHDERZ
57.14% + DA B REPA A8 & HA JE i s & 0 B
BHL0% 2 BE °

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

20 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 20 R—EHEEFNEL2RE (&)

T
§ (Continued)
(% Consolidated
o mE
o
g 2004 2003
3 —EENE —EE=F
3 HK$°000 HK$'000
o) - — e —
3 THER THT
3 e
= Share of net assets b EEFE 250,368 133,024
!l A ——— e S S S — — —
> .
3 Goodwill Bk
s — on acquisition — B 9,000 9,000
§ — on additional capital contributions (i) —EBINE AR BB () 28,646 =
S — accumulated amortisation — REHEESN (4,665) (900)
S
S
32,981 8,100
283,349 141,124
Note — ftiE —
(i)  During the year ended 31st December 2004, the Group made () BE-_ZTNE+_RA=+—HILFEH
additional capital contributions of approximately HK$95,497,000 to - RSB[R E#EFEINE & 495,497,000
GZQREL. The goodwill represents the excess of capital contributions T FREABEEBINEESZRAEEEGE
made by the Group over the increase in the Group's share of net MEEFME -

assets of GZQREL.

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS 21 REEEFEEZRE

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled AEBETHEBARE -—ZBUE=7HEM
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate KA EERERR ARG —IBERZE
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, under BERY Bt A&EERENKAXFEHE
which each of the Group and Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate REBERAAERRABMURPBREAEERE
Development Company Limited contributed land and other assets BMNzMERELBREMEE - REEZ
for the development of properties located in Guangzhou, ETWNF+_A=+—HLEFERN ' ~5E
Guangdong Province, mainland China. During the year ended 31st BEZEHRREHNEESSN(ZEET=
December 2004, the Group's participating interest in these jointly F:955%) 28R -

controlled assets was 95.5% (2003: 95.5%).



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS 21 REBEHEEZRE (&)
(Continued)

Details of the aggregate amount of the assets and liabilities HASEEEEREHEELTH <R
recognised in the consolidated accounts in respect of the Group's HeRAERREERAG AEE ﬁl ZID
attributable interest in jointly controlled assets arrangement were as s 2

follows:

Consolidated

o)
HF
m
F]
i
a
=
>
Il
[l
L]
L]
JE|
_FF
_FF
#

Foae)
2004 2003
—ZEINE o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Assets BE 1,434,928 1,142,598
Liabilities BfE 1,160,353 887,892
22 GOODWILL/(NEGATIVE GOODWILL) 22 BE S (AEE)
Consolidated
="E
Negative
Goodwill goodwill Total
5k apeg st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Beginning of year 3 4,072 - 4,072
Acquisition pursuant to the REXTERZ 2 WE
Major Transactions (Note 38(c)) (K 2£38(c) - (136,274) (136,274)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38(d))  WHEEM B A & (A7£38(d)) 6,440 (24,133) (17,693)
Amortisation charge BiHRAX (1,468) = (1,468)
End of year E3S 9,044 (160,407) (151,363)
At 31st December 2004 R_EZNEF
+-A=+—8H
Cost B A {E 16,620 (160,407) (143,787)
Accumulated amortisation 2T (7,576) = (7,576)
Net book value BREFEE 9,044 (160,407) (151,363)
At 31st December 2003 RZBEZT=F
+-A=+—8H
Cost B A {E 10,180 = 10,180
Accumulated amortisation 2T (6,108) = (6,108)
Net book value FmEFE 4,072 = 4,072
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

At cost B AR

Add: Attributable profits on m: BEMEEGRT

pre-sold properties

Less: Sale instalments and deposits

received/receivable N EkiEe
Costs consisted of — B AR B B 1 —
Land cost TR AR
Construction expenditures BRERY
Borrowing costs capitalised (i) 7 & N H) 18 B K AR ()

Note -

() The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the year
ended 31st December 2004 was approximately 5.7% per annum
(2003: 5.6% per annum).

All properties under development for sale are located in mainland
China.

As at 31st December 2004, approximately HK$1,367,805,000 (2003:
HK$541,760,000) and approximately HK$9,556,000 (2003: Nil) of
the properties under development for sale were pledged as collateral
for the Group's banking facilities (Note 43(c)) and bank loans
borrowed by a jointly controlled entity (Note 4(e)), respectively.

24 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

All completed properties for sale are located in mainland China and
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2066
through 2074.

As at 31st December 2004, approximately HK$212,458,000 (2003:
HK$216,309,000) of the completed properties for sale were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 43(d)).

BBl EREE D H

23 AIEHECHREDYRE

24

Consolidated

)

2004 2003

= 5Lk —BT=F
HK$°000 HK$000
TET FAT
6,567,058 4,122,424
654,198 478,078
7,221,256 4,600,502
(1,562,507) (1,183,280)
5,658,749 3,417,222
3,950,373 1,959,620
2,428,953 2,027,402
187,732 135,402
6,567,058 4,122,424

ftat —

() BEZTNF+_A=+-HALFEER
BRNEERAZ FHMNENEFEST% (=
TL=F : FHX56%) °

EHAHEEZRRETRGURNFEX

BE o

RZEEMF+-_A=+—H ' A#tEEZ
R D YEL1,367,805,0008 T (ZEE=
F : 541,760,000/ 7T.) & %79,556,000/% JT
(Z2E=F: f)a%ﬂﬁﬂ’mﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
(PF3E43(c) Rta T —RERZEH ERE 2ER
(P 5 4(e )Zﬁ#ﬁuu"

AHEECZEERDE

2 AT B 2 B SRR W S A0 B KR
MARBRIBER —ZRNANEE -+ MFEHRH
B THFAERE 2L L -

RZEZWFF+ZA=ZF+—8 &
212,458,000/ 7T (ZZZ =4 : 216,309,000
B Z A HE Z B AR EE 5 Rl 8
ERAEERITES (RME43d) °
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25 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25 FEURBR X s
Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally payable by BEHEMELRE-—RENEYEREHH N g
the purchasers within six months subsequent to the execution of BARNBEAYXN HENEALLMEE ?i'g
the sale and purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased BE—REABFFAEN -
properties and property management fees are generally payable in %
advance by the tenants on a monthly basis. E
Aging analysis of accounts receivable was as follows: BB S 2 BREe DT T - jﬁ.

A

o JE|

Consolidated Sy

sa '
2004 2003
—EENEF —TT=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 3 months 023fE A 327,984 304,229
3 to 6 months 32618 A 3,874 1,424
6 to 9 months 6= 9@ A 650 445
9 to 12 months 9= 1218 A 641 126
Over 12 months BiE12E A 3,396 2,980
336,545 309,204

26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26 ANRIE - REREMRBEE
CURRENT ASSETS

Consolidated Company
ma D E
2004 2003 2004 2003

—EENE —TET-F ZZENE —TIZT=
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET THT FET

Prepayment for acquisition of land (i) U i 4 2 B 4 SRR () = 79,555 = =

Guarantee deposit (i) FERIZ 2 () 47,170 = = =

Prepaid construction expenditures BNRERY 26,780 44,226 - -

Utility and other deposits NAFEREMEZES 34,825 30,533 - -

Others Hit 25,014 15,247 422 422

133,789 169,561 422 422

Notes - & —

(i) ~ This represents advances made to minority shareholders of the ()  WERKELHRRARETHEBAR
Company'’s subsidiaries for acquisition of land, which will be injected TOHIREEE Y8 BN i
into the subsidiaries upon the issuance of land use right certificates. FREELRBEEEAZMB AT -

(i) This represents deposit paid as collaterals of the Group’s obligations iy WHARNEBERKE—BHBLQAENSSD
on a payable amounting to approximately HK$117,867,000 relating 117,867,000 7T 2 18 2 # 8 2 (K =
to acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38(d)) and will be repayable upon 38(d)) B EBENEE RN EHEE
the settlement of the payable balance. )
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

27 INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Consolidated

Foae)
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost BB LW, - BAA 8,386 8,386
Less: Adjustment to quoted market value & : IR S REAE (4,485) (4,837)
3,901 3,549
Unlisted investment FLEMHE 283 943
4,184 4,492
Quoted market value of listed shares ETRGBzT S ®RE 3,901 3,549

28 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31st December 2004, the Group's bank deposits of
approximately HK$150,287,000 (2003: HK$256,448,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 43(e)).
In addition, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$108,363,000 (2003: HK$53,284,000) were charged by certain
banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted by
the banks to buyers of the Group's properties.

As at 31st December 2004, cash and bank deposits of approximately
HK$729,885,000 (2003: HK$635,576,000) were denominated in
Chinese Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market and its exchange rate is determined by the
People’s Bank of China.

29 SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

Short-term bank loans bear interest at 5.3% to 6.9% per annum
(2003: 4.8% to 6.0% per annum). Refer to Note 43 for details of
collateral.

28 WERBITEX
R-ZTZENFE+=-_A=+—H A£EH
150,287,000/ 7T (ZZZ = F : 256,448,000
B RIOTGEREBRBERAEBRAIEER (R
B E43() ° bhoh » AREBRITERY
108,363,000/ 7T (ZFF =4 : 53,284,000
BIL)EREETHROTER  UERTEESR
BARASENEERE TRBERRE -

RZEZTWF+A=+—8 "8
729,885,000 1L (ZZFZ =4 : 635,576,000
BLT)BEERBIEFIAARETE - AR
BB MIZEALRCEY  HEXRR
HEARRITERE °

29 EHRITER
%E/quﬁﬁ ET}’F\&QE%UTS 3%:!:6 9%(—7 =
=F  FMEL8%FE6.0%) TR  EHFm2
AIEE 243



30 LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

31

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

30 REIRITER

Consolidated

RE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts repayable AR TS5 HEEE 2 RE
— within one year -—&R 1,358,814 291,583
— within one to two years ——EmWFER 877,505 1,549,912
— within two to three years -ME=FRK 670,300 112,312
2,906,619 1,953,807
Less: Amount due within one year B ORBEEET —FR
included under current liabilities 3 H 2 5RIB (1,358,814) (291,583)
1,547,805 1,662,224

Long-term bank loans bear interest at approximately 2.5% to 6.6%
per annum (2003: 4.0% to 6.8% per annum). Refer to Note 43 for
details of collateral.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Aging analysis of accounts payable was as follows:

RERITEFRENEN25%E6.6% (ZF
T=F : FMEKL0%ZE6.8%) 58 - HHm

ZHBHE2HME3 -

31 B

ENERZRRITOT

Consolidated

#4
2004 2003
—gmE —22=f
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT
0 to 3 months 0% 3 A 662,854 1,329,840

Approximately HK$123,344,000 (2003: HK$526,502,000) of
accounts payable was due to subsidiaries of minority shareholders
of certain subsidiaries of the Company in respect of property
construction fees (Note 4(b)).

IYEREERNARARE THERAR 2D
R 2B R R 2 R4 5123,344,000
BT (ZEZ =4 : 526,502,0007 7t) (BH

FF4(b)) o

o)
HF
m
F]
i
a
=
>
Il
[l
L]
L]
JE|
_FF
_FF
#
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32 LAND COST PAYABLE

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

32 FEAT LA

Consolidated

RE

2004 2003
=L —z2=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Land premium payable PRt £ 3 S 489,150 77,277
Land compensation payable JE 15 - b 48 18 3R 529,544 43,389
1,018,694 120,666

Less: Amount due within one year W EARBEBEER -—FR
included under current liabilities BEze® (828,128) (108,819)
190,566 11,847

33 TAXATION PAYABLE 33 FEHIIE
Consolidated
RE

2004 2003
341 -3 —2E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong profits tax BBMNEH 4,048 7,487
Mainland China enterprise income tax R K P ATE R 224,476 102,776
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K e i SR E R 38,607 38,863
Mainland China business tax B R B 85,920 39,556
353,051 188,682




34 DEFERRED TAXATION

34

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the applicable mainland China
enterprise income tax rate and land appreciation tax rate.

Movements were as follows:

At 1st January 2003

Credited to profit and loss account
Charged to equity

Disposal of investment properties
Others

At 31st December 2003

Fair value adjustments pursuant to the
Major Transactions (Note 38(c))

Credited to profit and loss account

Charged to equity

Disposal of investment properties

At 31st December 2004

Note -

R_EE=F—F—
FEERRLE
RSB
HEREME

Hh

EREARCK
MR
HERENE

R-ZZEZME
+=—A=+—8

Revaluation
of investment
properties
RE&E
MESR
HK$'000
TFHET

H 834,499
8,753
(25,622)
(50,000)
767,630
27,141

172,658
(77,710)

889,719

(i) This deferred taxation represented the taxation effect on temporary
difference arising from the different bases in reporting revenue with

mainland China tax authorities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$32,088,000 (2003: HK$73,792,000) to
carry forward against future taxable income; these tax losses will

expire from 2005 to 2009.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

i 3E Bt 18

ESEBURTYIB R 2 B BARE % S B
R ERHEAR AT R
2 B -

HHENT :
Consolidated
me
Different
bases
in reporting
revenue (i) Tax losses Total
FRZBA
B3R E (i) BB A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET FAET
311,301 - 1,145,800
(26,879) - (26,879)
- - 8,753
- - (25,622)
- - (50,000)
284,422 - 1,052,052
- - 27,141
(31,711) (20,531) (52,242)
- - 172,658
- - (77,710)
252,711 (20,531) 1,121,899
Hiat : —

() EERBERRFBEGEAEREEETR
ZWARREES| B E R EEL 2B

BRE -

BEMSHEENRERBARBSINEER
RRPERF R A SR M T4 2 BB 1ERE
R o NEE 7 RHERFI18432,088,000/4 7T
(ZET=4 : 73,792,000/ 7T) A] 45 82 JA 3K
HARERERA  UEHEBERN_ZTZTRF
E_TTNFRNEM o
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g
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i
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]
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

34 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

34

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

EEB IR ()

BEERBEEERBBERAERTHBEER
BEBRAENEMEHNETHER AR
—REHEAT - HAEREE - UTRES
EERBEXRMEI ERAHR 228

Consolidated

(i) During the year ended 31st December 2004, 1,000,000 employee
share options were exercised to subscribe for the Company’s shares at
a consideration of HK$1,170,000.

i

Foey
2004 2003
—EENEF —ETT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fi&T
Deferred tax assets BEREEE (20,531) =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 1,142,430 1,052,052
1,121,899 1,052,052
35 SHARE CAPITAL 35 A
2004 2003
—EENEF —ETE=
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BREOEEB HE g B [EEEL
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FET F A& Fi& T
Authorised ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREMBENET
2 E R 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEIETT
Z LB
At 1st January w—H—H 1,002,000 100,200 1,002,000 100,200
Issued upon exercise of share options (i) 17 15 & f% # i 2 77 (i) 1,000 100 = =
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 1,003,000 100,300 1,002,000 100,200
Note — Kt —

1,000,00017 1& B FE AR & 17 (5 LA SR BB

i) BHE_ZTWNE+_A=+—HLEEH
' 1,00
RRARRG + KEA1,170,000% 7T °



36 EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

Effective from November 2002, the Company has adopted a new
employee share options scheme, under which it may grant options
to employees (including executive directors of the Company) to
subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a limit that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
share options schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. The exercise price will be
determined by the Company's board of directors and shall at least
be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the options, (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares of HK$0.1 each. The new employee share options
scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2012. As
at 31st December 2004, no employee share options have been
granted under this new share options scheme and there were no
options outstanding under the old share scheme.

All options granted under the old share option scheme will continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the old
share options scheme.

Movements of employee share options during the year ended 31st
December 2004 were as follows:

Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
REBH T BRITERE
Old share option scheme
EBRESE
30th April 2002 30th April 2002 to HK$1.17
ZEEZFMA=TH 29th April 2007 11747t
—TE_F
mMA=+H
E_TTLF
mA=-+NH

36

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

BEBKRE

H-_FTTE_F+—Af ARFRACEHEAH—H
HEBBRENS - Bl ARFAAER
(BEARANITES) REBREARBEAR
DR ERALABRESEREER
B ARAT R A BB AR AE T LATT R BS 21T A0 AR {D
BY TREBEARAITKREHITRAN
30% - TEERMARREESET £
PORTI=ZFZ&RE  (IARARNDR
BRERLAHZWHE  IREXBRE
REBHALERS B AR ARG 2 FHR
mE: RVARABRDEE (FK0.1E
JU) c HEEBBEAEANBE-_T—_F
ZTEHRERAR - R-_TTOE+_-A
=t—B  TEREEHERESERLRE
BERRENYBREEBRESIRTZE
A RATE o

REBEBRESSIRL 2 2BBRERESE
AR RAREEBRER S ZHAR T U
fi£

REZ-_ZZNF+_A=1+—HILFERX
ZEEBBELHMT

Number of share options

Beginning
of year
F4
‘000

T

1,000

BRERE

Granted Exercised
during during End of
the year the year year
FRARY FRTHE F&
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T
- (1,000) -

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
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L]
L]
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

37 RESERVES 37 f#E
Consolidated
=2E
Investment Cumulative
property General currency
Share revaluation reserve translation Retained
premium reserve fund (i) adjustments profits Total
REWME —-& R E%
ROBE EfHEE HEES>G) REAE  KHEAN &5t

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TFET TFAT TET TET FEL TR
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At 1st January 2004 RZZZNE
—A—H 618,849 737,617 84,499 3,966 1,149,247 2,594,178

Profit attributable to A% 58 1 )4 7
shareholders - - - - 611,250 611,250
Transfer from retained profits (i)  Z& B8R &% 7() - = 48,879 = (48,879) =
Payment of dividends &A% 8 - - - - (60,150) (60,150)

Reserve transferred to the profit R &R E
and loss account upon disposal ~ M ERHEEE

of investment properties BarZ@EE - (75,074) = = = (75,074)
Surplus on revaluation of RENMEEM
investment properties A - 82,206 = = = 82,206
Proceeds from issue of shares #1TR{) Fig 28
(Note 36) (Ktat36) 1,070 - - - - 1,070
Share issue expenses W ETHY (4) - - - - 4)
Translation adjustments B 5 A% - = = 7) = 7)
At 31st December 2004 R-ZEZTMF
+-RA=+—H 619,915 744,749 133,378 3,959 1,651,468 3,153,469
Representing — R&—
2004 Final dividend proposed E# -ZTZ M4
KRS 60,180
Others A 1,591,288
Retained profits as at RZZZTNE
31st December 2004 +=—A=+—8
ZRE M 1,651,468
Analysed by - T3 & B ST —
Company and subsidiaries ARAIRKBRF 619,915 744,749 133,378 3,959 1,490,803 2,992,804
Jointly controlled entity HEAZHER - - - - 162,517 162,517
Associated company il YN - - - - (1,852) (1,852)
At 31st December 2004 RZZZEWE
+-A=+—H 619,915 744,749 133,378 3,959 1,651,468 3,153,469




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

37 RESERVES (Continued) 37 & (&) .
Consolidated g

RE | ?ﬁg

Investment Cumulative

property General currency g

Share  revaluation reserve translation Retained E
premium reserve fund (i) adjustments profits Total .
Bamy B REE% o

B EE EEE RHEERN) HESER  RREN At “%4'
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 H
FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  FAT "

At 1st January 2003 RZZEZ=F
—A—H 618,849 762,486 48,104 4,213 910,368 2,344,020
Profit attributable to shareholders & & & {5 % - = - = 315,354 315,354
Transfer from retained profits (i) &% & 1% 2 3% #(i) = = 36,395 = (36,395) =
Payment of dividends R BB - - = = (40,080) (40,080)
Reserve transferred to the profit ~ RHEREWE R
and loss account upon disposal ~ EEFEER
of investment properties a1 - (38,388) - - = (38,388)
Surplus on revaluation of RENFEHBLH
investment properties - 13,519 - - - 13,519
Translation adjustments fE AR - - - (247) - (247)
At 31st December 2003 R-TE=F
+ZA=1t—H 618,849 737,617 84,499 3,966 1,149,247 2,594,178
Representing - K& -
2003 Final dividend proposed Ba_TT=F
KBRS 30,060
Others Hith 1,119,187
Retained profits as at RZZEE=F
31st December 2003 +-A=+-H
ZRE & A 1,149,247
Analysed by — WTEI&ES T —
Company and subsidiaries KRR RMEBAR 618,849 737,617 84,499 3,966 1,038,341 2,483,272
Jointly controlled entity HEZHER - - - - 112,024 112,024
Associated company 5%%*27 - - - = (1,118) (1,118)
At 31st December 2003 R-_ZE=F
+-A=+—H 618849 737,617 84,499 3,966 1,149,247 2,594,178
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

37 RESERVES (Continued)

Note -

@

As stipulated by regulations in mainland China, the Company's
subsidiaries established and operated in mainland China are required
to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, at rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The
general reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be
utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise
expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business
operations. During the year ended 31st December 2004, the boards
of directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China
appropriated an aggregate amount of approximately HK$48,879,000
(2003: HK$36,395,000) to the general reserve fund and determined
not to make any appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund.

37 f&fE (4&)
Wit

U]

RBHRBEAREERETH - ANQ AR R B AR
B R A 2 HE B D B] B HBR R 18 0% F
(RIEEFFEBERR) PRL—$HE—
BEEESRCERREES  WXDAZAH
EECET —REBESTREREBAE
FEBBRAERTAR  MEXREES
AR AEREER - RBE-TTNF 1=
A=+—BLEE ' ARRZHPBEKRES
NAZEEe L A48,879,000/8 T (=
TER =4 : 36,395,000/ T) & —REFEE
ERRETEBAEZLERERS -

Company
AT
Share Retained
premium profits Total
B 17 % (B R 88 )2 7 &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T FET
At 1st January 2004 R_ZEZN&E—HF—H 618,849 80,122 698,971
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 5 fi& & i 7 - 93,436 93,436
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D PSR
(Note 36) (Kiz£36) 1,070 - 1,070
Shares issue expenses BARMH N (4) = (4)
Payment of dividends AT AR 2 - (60,150) (60,150)
At 31st December 2004 RZEENF+=A=+—H 619,915 113,408 733,323
Representing — R&-—
2004 Final dividend proposed BE_ZSTHFRHARE 60,180
Others H A 53,228
Retained profits as at RZEENF+=A=+—H
31st December 2004 ZRE R A 113,408
At 1st January 2003 NZEZE=F—F—H 618,849 26,648 645,497
Profit attributable to shareholders % 5 Ji& 1k i | = 93,554 93,554
Payment of dividends AT AR B - (40,080) (40,080)
At 31st December 2003 R-ZEE=F+=-A=+—H 618,849 80,122 698,971
Representing — R&E—
2003 Final dividend proposed BE_TE-FRHRE 30,060
Others Hth 50,062
Retained profits as at RZZEZE=F+=ZA=+—H
31st December 2003 ZRE R 80,122




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38 FERERERMWT

I
STATEMENT ;"%
(a) RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO () BRBEAEREHACEEEZRSE ?ﬁ;
NET CASH INFLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS RAFRBEZRGTUOE :
IS AS FOLLOWS: 2
]
i
2004 2003 I.I
—EENE —EET=F A
HK$000 HK$'000
FET Fi&T ﬁ
#
Profit before taxation B 35 A s A 1,189,360 635,942
Interest income B A (4,484) (7,211)
Interest expense B 13,375 4,280
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity J& {4 £k [F3% I & B2 i 7 (100,390) (110,922)
Share of loss of an associated company ~ JE {5 — [ H & A & Eﬂé 734 1,118
Provision for amount due from an JE Uiy — I B 2 N B 2R 0A B 4
associated company - 620
Depreciation of fixed assets TEENE 8,759 8,423
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEEE 255 486
Amortisation of goodwill 72 8 5N 5,233 2,936
Amortisation of rights to receive Yo 78 1 4 85
rental income - 3,308
Gain on investment in securities BHEKE W (352) (722)
Operating profit before working BEESEER 2L E 5T
capital changes 1,112,490 538,258
Increase in land pending development FEE L HE M (630,175) (373,770)
(Increase)/ decrease in properties for sale A & 2 ¥ % (&) /5 (257,775) 6,720
Increase in accounts receivable JIE Y R T 1 0 (27,341) (188,159)
Decrease/ (increase) in prepayments, BARE - Ze RkEAM
deposits and other current assets TBEEmMD (M) 37,700 (42,343)
(Decrease)/ increase in accounts payable — FEfFERFR Gt d>) /42 0 (791,457) 626,442
Increase/(decrease) in land cost payable e 3 A AR A0 ORi ) 898,028 (312,067)
Increase in deferred income i JE U A 30 829,580 128,372
Increase in accruals and other payables TR E A I H fh & 5 SR IE 55 0 38,750 110,216
Increase in mainland China business J& 15 AP B & 26 7 5
tax payable 6,902 14,574
Net cash inflow generated from operations 4 & E 4+ 2 H &R A FE 1,216,702 508,243



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38 mERESRERMT (&
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING IS AS (b) FAFEZRHESBINMT :
FOLLOWS:
Dueto Duetoa Due to
Due to an jointly ultimate
Short-term  Long-term Due to related associated controlled holding
bank loans bank loans  directors companies  company entity  company

BN EMN-H B

ik R Eft ENBRE -RABE HE2H RRER
RTEX HRTEX EFXE  LAME  LAFRE  REXE  LQARAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
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As at 1st January 2003 R-_BE=F 1,108,633 1,198,125 14,188 303,314 1,109 212,567 20,000
—A—H
New loans/advances %ﬁi\g‘é%}(/gﬁ 1,092,510 1,255,357 13,128 804,696 1,117 881,907 12,000
Repayments BEZA (1,108,633)  (499,675) (15,394)  (892,278) - (909,127) -
As at 31st December 2003 R-BE=F 1,092,510 1,953,807 11,922 215,732 2,226 185,347 32,000
+-A=t—H
New loans/advances MEER /B 473890 1,552,642 4111 52,441 - 431317 27,000
Repayments BENA (967,462)  (599,830) (366) (93,348) (1,034)  (225,658) -
Acquisition of further interests BEEXEX 5
in subsidiaries pursuant o E—HWE - - - 304,993 = = =
the Major Transactions (o= PNGL: 35
(Note 38(c)) (B15£38(c)
As at 31st December 2004 RZZEME 598,938 2,906,619 15,667 479,818 1,192 391,006 59,000
+-F=t-H



38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

CASH FLOW 38 GrelREREXRMEE (&)

)
STATEMENT (Continued) i
(c) ACQUISITION OF FURTHER INTERESTS IN () REFEXZE-SWHEHELQH *ﬁi‘g
SUBSIDIARIES PURSUANT TO THE MAIJOR B (Fat2)
TRANSACTIONS (NOTE 2) J:*‘;T
>
a
HK$'000 I.I
FET 4
A
JE|
Net assets acquired Wi & EHE ﬁ
Minority interests YRR R 389,713 -
Fair value adjustments HERIRE
— Fixed assets -EEEE 373
— Properties under development —RBEREEE
for long-term investment ZERPYE 13,953
— Properties under development for sale —AIHHEECBERPYE 72,439
— Completed properties for sale —AIHHEE BB E 19,339
— Deferred taxation — R IE (27,141)
468,676
Negative goodwill BElE (136,274)
Cost of acquisition Uiz B A AR 332,402
Satisfied by — ATSEIEEZ A —
Cash Re 26,262
Due to related companies (i) JE 1 B8 2 A A (i) 304,993
Total purchase consideration BEREBHRSE 331,255
Direct costs relating to the acquisition HWEEE BEKAR 1,147
Cost of acquisition U B X AR 332,402
Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition BREFERSHEBERB AR ZREER
of subsidiaries pursuant to the Major Transactions — B2AH—
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE (26,262)
Direct costs paid ENEERAE (1,147)
(27,409)
Note - fit &t —
(i)  The purchase consideration is payable by 12 monthly instalments iy BEREZAD12EAEE (KF4d) o

(Note 4(d)).
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38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38 RERERBKRME (&)

T
g STATEMENT (Confinued)
f? (d) ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (INCLUDING NEW d) WEKHBAR (BEHFHBARAR
3 SUBSIDIARIES AND FURTHER INTERESTS IN EXISTING REEME AR ZE— 5 WE)
g SUBSIDIARIES)
g
é HK$'000
s FAET
5 .
g Net assets acquired WEFEE
: Minority interests D YRR R 2,902
3 Fixed assets EEEE 75
2 Properties under development for sale AHECERPYE 143,604
§ Prepayments, deposits and other BAFE - ek
= current assets Hin REEE 1,928
S Cash and other bank deposits e REMBITER 1,168
Accounts payable JEfBR 3K (6,604)
Accruals and other payables TR B A & H i 3B (2,544)
140,529
Goodwill EES 6,440
Negative goodwill BEEE (24,133)
Purchase consideration BENRE 122,836
Satisfied by — XN
Cash Re 4,969
Accounts payable (i) e BR 3R () 117,867
Purchase consideration BERE 122,836
Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition of HRUERBRARCHSRLFE O
subsidiaries —
HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration ReRE (4,969)
Cash and other bank deposits acquired WHER e REMRITER 1,168
(3,801)
Note - it —
(i)  The amount will be settled upon the transfer of certain () BRESREBBELHNBARTKEAES
completed properties to the sellers on completion of BYELTSETERREE -
construction of the properties by the related subsidiary acquired.
(e) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (e) HERBELZEEY :
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and other bank B4 RBLEEYBERSREMIE
deposits. AEE -



39 SEGMENT INFORMATION
(@) PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT - GEOGRAPHICAL

SEGMENTS

The Group operates in five main geographical areas:

Guangdong Province

Beijing

Shanghai

Tianjin

Others

property development, property
investment and property
management

property development and
property investment

property development and
property investment

property development and
property investment

property design and consultancy
services

All inter-segment transactions were conducted on normal

commercial terms.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

39 mEER (&)

2004
“EIMF
Guangdong
Province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Elimination Total
BERE R b=} P Hity ok Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FETL FETL FETL FETL FETL FEL TAL
Turnover BEH
External IhR 2,395,779 1,459,240 298,534 280,502 15,858 - 4449913
Inter-segment NEbH BE% 7,133 - - - 102,421 (109,554) =
Total turnover Fal- =] 2,402,912 1,459,240 298,534 280,502 118,279 (109,554) 4,449,913
Segment results SHLE 517,309 329849 128912 19,114 15858 1,011,042
Other revenue LRIl ON 69,644 1,887 427 236 45,512 117,706
Unallocated costs KA B (25,669)
Profit from operations g A 1,103,079
Share of loss of an JE 16—
associated company BEARER (734) = = = = (734)
Share of profit of a jointly [EfE— AR
controlled entity EERA 100,390 - - - - 100,390
Finance costs B 7% ik A (13,375)
Profit before taxation B4 A& Al 1,189,360
Taxation M (473,931)
Profit after taxation BT &R 715,429
Minority interests LHREER (104,179)
Profit attributable to
shareholders R 3R R 15 ) A 611,250
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 7,175,998 3,147,305 1,166,051 1,024,456 17,456 12,531,266
Investment in an R — &
associated company RAZEE 36 - - - - 36
Investment in a jointly W —R £ R
controlled entity ERIRE 283,349 - - - - 283,349
12,814,651
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities SHAE 5,155,427 2,535,092 929,735 420,322 401,350 9,441,926
Capital expenditure BREY 322,144 225,279 1,233 562,594 159 1,111,409
Depreciation & 5,016 2,275 543 720 205 8,759
Amortisation B 5,233 - - - - 5,233




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER (E)
2003
ZET=F
Guangdong
Province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others  Elimination Total
ER4E gl o xE Hith HsH B
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET FET FAEL FAEL FAEL FEr  FAx
Turnover BEE
External SRR 2,196,349 1,130,155 - - (582) - 3,325,922
Inter-segment NEbo BEH - - - - 102,073 (102,073) =
2,196,349 1,130,155 - - 101,491 (102,073) 3,325,922
Segment results DEEE 320,686 242,227 (7,401) (9,936) (582) - 544,994
Other revenue L ON 4,243 2,205 - - 763 7,211
Unallocated costs RABAKA (21,787)
Profit from operations el 530,418
Share of loss of an JE 15 —Fd]
associated company BENRAER (1,118) = - - = (1,118)
Share of profit of a jointly EE—R R
controlled entity BHERER 110,922 - - - - 110,922
Finance costs B B AR (4,280)
Profit before taxation B 750 31 7 635,942
Taxation A (252,000)
Profit after taxation BT &R 383,942
Minority interests LEREER (68,588)
Profit attributable to
shareholders TR 3R FE 1 A 315,354
Assets BE
Segment assets AHEE 7,439,047 1,815,123 672,468 252,698 23,200 10,202,536
Investment in an RN E R A
associated company LRE 770 - - - - 770
Investment in a jointly i b e
controlled entity ERIRE 141,124 - - - - 141,124
10,344,430
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities A EE 4,677,967 2,105,103 294,278 33,431 15,788 7,126,567
Capital expenditure BAEY 132,972 2329 435,064 3,881 116 574,362
Depreciation e 5,348 1,821 695 366 193 8,423
Amortisation i 2,036 3,308 - - 900 6,244
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Property development —

Property investment -

property development in residential
and commercial projects

holding of offices, shops and
carparks for investment potential
and rental income

39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 39 DEER (&)
(b) SECONDARY REPORTING FORMAT - BUSINESS (b) REHBER — K2
SEGMENTS
The Group is organised into three main business segments: AEER=-EEZXBHH AKX

NEZER - EERBAXRAZVFER

NERE - HEERBERESRAREH
RE  EHLEES

Property management — management of residential and MEEE - EEAEREENE
commercial properties
2004
—EENF
Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
= 3] 2 EEE BEEAR EXMEX
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TFET T FHET
Property development ¥R 4,338,019 976,776 8,803,655 723,131
Property investment MERE 42,744 38,470 3,695,814 387,386
Property management MEERE 69,150 (4,204) 31,797 892
4,449,913 1,011,042 12,531,266 1,111,409
Other revenue H ez 117,706
Unallocated costs AR5 BLEK AR (25,669)
Profit from operations # e F| 1,103,079
Investment in an associated REE AR ZEE
company 36
Investment in a jointly A — 8 £ [ 43
controlled entity ERKE 283,349
12,814,651
2003
—TT=F
Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets  expenditure
= 3 ARG BEERR BARRAX
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Property development E 3,238,906 508,009 6,097,968 15,006
Property investment WEKE 35,487 31,938 4,074,109 558,190
Property management MEER 51,529 5,047 30,459 1,166
3,325,922 544,994 10,202,536 574,362
Other revenue H fh U = 7,211
Unallocated costs AP EKAR (21,787)
Profit from operations A8 1l 530,418
Investment in an associated REERAI 2R E
company 770
Investment in a jointly P — 8 £ 7 4%
controlled entity ERE2KE 141,124
10,344,430




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Ktz

40 COMMITMENTS 40 EPE
(a) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (a) BEXEE
The Group had the following capital commitments, which have AEBRNEKE NEE 2 ERREN
not been provided in the accounts: I
Consolidated Company
SE YN
2004 2003 2004 2003
Z2ENFE —TT=F ZTENF —TT=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Authorised and contracted for ERERETH
- Land costs — 3k AR - 841,458 = =
— Property construction costs — MK AN 3,638,794 1,331,983 = =
- Capital contribution to a jointly —R—HEEA 162,360 257,857 = =
controlled entity ERER 2
N
— Acquisition of further interest —E— AR
in a jointly controlled entity HREZEGE
(Note 2) Z¥Em (Mfat2) 468,775 - - -
4,269,929 2,431,298 - -
Authorised but not contracted for EREARTH
- Land costs — THI KR 1,087,019 985,390
— Property construction costs —WEREERKA 18,376,026 16,968,570 = =
19,463,045 17,953,960 - -
23,732,974 20,385,258 - -

The Group's share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled

entity not included in the above is as follows:

WARBREE EXZ AR EH#E KRR

HERERAEWNT

Consolidated Company
=RE NG|
2004 2003 2004 2003
—E2ENE —TT=F ZTEWNFE —ITIT=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
Authorised and contracted for ERERETH
- Land costs — T AR 67,910 84,687 - -
— Property construction costs — W ERE LKA 184,136 189,995 - -
252,046 274,682 - -
Authorised but not contracted for ERERRTY
- Land costs — T HIA AR 50,912 23,860
— Property construction costs — M E R A 966,629 760,715 = =
1,017,541 784,575 - -
1,269,587 1,059,257 - -
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40 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
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Amounts payable
— within one year
— within two to five years

41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 87 751

40

(b) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements extending to February 2008 of approximately
HK$8,402,000 (2003:HK$12,468,000).
payable under these agreements are analysed as follows:

The commitments

T3 HAZA R 2 358
——FR
——FHFR

41

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the accounts are:

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain buyers
of the Group’s properties

Guarantees given to banks for
bank loans of:
— a jointly controlled entity (Note 4(f))

- related companies (Note 4(f))
— subsidiaries

AYE ()

(b) REBYERE
AEBERZHBRE-_FTTENF_A

EHAEEMEZ T EHELLHEN®T
ZEABLHNECEROREDLD R
8,402,000 T (Z & & = F :
12,468,000/87T) ° ttE i T4 HZ

AESWNWET :

Consolidated
=e

2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
4,971 4,577
3,431 7,891
8,402 12,468

WEREFEFELRBEORARAGBENT ¢

Consolidated

RE
2004 2003
—EENE —TE=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
RBEEAEFEYE
ZERIZHIEE
EXRimmRTEL 3,270,473 1,861,354
ZHER
SIRITERMIET
EH A ER
—— R EREGEE
(2 HBat4(0) 94,340
— @@ A (7 KaE4()) 80,189 85,849
— B A A = -
3,350,662 2,041,543

The Company’s Directors and the Group’s management anticipate
that no material liabilities will arise from the above bank guarantees.

Company
|

2004 2003
—REMF —T2=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T
627,427 693,527
627,427 693,527

ARREERAKBEEEERSTGR Lt
BROERMELEREE -



42

43

PENSION SCHEMES

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
mainland China. The Group's employees make monthly contributions
to the plans at approximately 8% of the relevant income (comprising
salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group contributes 12%
to 22% of such income and has no further obligations for the
actual payment of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2004, the aggregate amount
of the employer contributions made by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$14,557,000 (2003: HK$9,391,000) (Note 8).

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st December 2004, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$3,505,557,000 (2003: HK$3,046,317,000) for
short-term and long-term bank loans, which were fully utilised. The
facilities were secured by:

(@) the Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$836,580,000 (2003:
HK$914,552,000) (Note 15);

(b) the Group's properties under development for long-term
investment of approximately HK$367,176,000 (2003:
HK$391,912,000) (Note 16);

(c) the Group’s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$1,367,805,000 (2003: HK$541,760,000)
(Note 23);

(d) the Group's completed properties for sale of approximately

HK$212,458,000 (2003: HK$216,309,000) (Note 24); and

(e) the Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$150,287,000
(2003: HK$256,448,000) (Note 28).

42
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B4 7Kz

R K £ 5 8l

AEECEEAARERH2E -8R
BUETABE ZERMNRE - Bl sl
AEeFE ([BELE) - RERESE
g AEE(EX) RERESBAERBHIM
NESEPMATEBEZEERAZS5%
RZTEIEF AT - BEREEMEZE
B EREA1,0008 7T 0 M%7 1,000
T HRABEREIEE -

REREAREZERRE  FEER/ERT
AR BEEE—EHBERE 2 RIKG
8- AEEEESARAEBEA (BEH
& R RIEAD) M8%H A EMEL MK - K
SEHARZZEWA12%E22%EHEHR - B
BEERI AREYEEMHERERS
NREME - BREPZRAFABEEINTR
HKEEZ2HEAE -

HE-ZZME+-_A=+—HBILEE K
SE{EL ZEEM/-KL A 14,557,000 T
(ZZZT =4 : 9,391,000/ 71.) (Kiz£8) °

R-ZBENE+-—A=1+—0 A&EE@2#
TREARERTERREHRITER £
& ##)/53,505,557,0008 L (CEE =4 :
3,046,317,000%87C) ' EZHEA - 55
EA T SEER

(a) A%[ERMEAEY 836,580,000 T
(ZEZ =4 : 914,552,000/ ) 2 1%
EEAGEIPE

(b) ZANEE4367,176,000/ T (ZTE =
% 1 391,912,000 L) 2 HERPER
B2BEERYE (KiE16) ;

(0 AEBZAHEEZERFVEY
1,367,805,0008 L (Z T T = F
541,760,000 7t) (Ff3E23)

d AEBZAHEEZEERDEY
212,458,000 L (Z & T = F
216,309,000 7t) (KizE24) + &

(e) ZANE&EE ZiR1T17 7 41150,287,000/8 7T
(ZZEZ =4 : 256,448,000/ 7t) (Mt
$128) o
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44

45

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 8 #5F1 &

BANKING FACILITIES (Continued)

In addition, the Group is required to comply with certain financial
covenants under certain bank borrowings.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors consider Sounda Properties Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, to be its ultimate holding
company.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 18th April
2005.

43
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45
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z W&~ 7]

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 2004 are as

follows:

Name of company

AR

Hopson Development
International Limited
AEARBEBRARAA

Archibald Properties Limited
EEEXARAA

Beijing Hopson Beifang
Real Estate Development
Limited

tRea&EEFE
MEMZEFERAR

Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou
Real Estate Development
Limited

It REELZMNE M E
MEERAA

Beijing Hopson Yuling
Real Estate Development
Limited

It R & & 0 = 5 i E
MEERAA

Chia Lung Group
Company Limited
EREEERAA

Dynawell Investment Limited

EMRERRAR

Ever New Properties Limited

BHEXERAA

Place of incorporation
and operations

&t A 3L

REEMH

British Virgin Islands
RBRIEE

British Virgin Islands
RERUME

Mainland China
B K

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
Ll N

Samoa

EEDE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Issued and fully
paid capital
BRITR
BERAE

Us$2,000
2,0003 7T

us$2
2% 7T

US$12,000,000
12,000,000 7T

Rmb81,710,000
ARH
81,710,0007T

US$11,357,708
11,357,708% J©

US$6,500,000
6,500,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

HK$2 ordinary
HK$3 non-voting
deferred shares (i)
2B B
IBTLEREE

i TE PR (i)

W-TTMF+- A=+ -ANEEHBAR

BT

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

AEEES
REFDL
Directly  Indirectly
BEE e &
100% =
- 100%
= 100%
= 100%
= 100%
= 100%
- 50% (ii)
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

FEXRHK

op
HF
m
|
i
at
=
]
al
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L]
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Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REER

Property development

MEZRE

Property development

MEZRE

Property development

MEZRE

Investment holding
REZER

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding
and property
investment

REEBEDERE
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Name of company

DAL

Guangdong Esteem
Property Services Limited

BRESVERBERAF

Guangdong Hopson
Dijing Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BRAEFTREME
BRAA]

Guangdong Hopson Lejing
Real Estate Limited

BREELR
FMEBRRA A

Guangdong Hopson Minghui
Real Estate Limited

BRAELHE
FERRRA A

Guangdong Hopson Yuehua
Real Estate Limited

ERE EHE
FEHERRRA A

Guangdong Huajingxincheng
Real Estate Limited

BRESHW
EHERRRA A

Guangdong Huanan
New City Real Estate
Limited

& R T
FEHERRRAA

Guangdong Huanan
Real Estate Limited

BREREME
BREAA]

Guangdong Jinan
Real Estate Limited

BREEEHE
BRAA]

Place of incorporation

and operations
af i} B L
REBHH

Mainland China
R B K

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
EipN 7

Mainland China
AR R

Mainland China
R K B

Mainland China
TN

Mainland China
TN

Mainland China
TN

Mainland China
TN

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z W&~ 7]

Issued and fully
paid capital
BETR
HRRAK

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7T

Rmb79,273,532
AR
79,273,5327T

Rmb41,532,852
AR
41,532,8527C

Rmb41,500,000
AR®
41,500,0007T

Rmb93,500,018
AR
93,500,0187C

Rmb162,378,578
ARH
162,378,5787C

Rmb48,046,856
ARH
48,046,8567T

Rmb65,084,340
ARH
65,084,3407C

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
rEBENL
REE 2L
Directly  Indirectly

HE A

100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 90%

= 100%

= 100%

= 99%

= 70%

= 90%

Principal activity

FTEXRH

Property management

MEEE

Property development

MEBRR

Property development

MEERE

Property development

MEERE

Property development

MEZRE

Property development

MEZRE

Property development

MEBRR

Property development

MEBR

Property development

MEERE



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z & 7]

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable

i
i
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity =
SEM AL T BRAR A E A
NEBB REEBE BERAE REBDL TEXK af
Directly  Indirectly i‘j
Hi 3 =
Il
Guangdong New Mainland China Rmb2,872,587 = 100% Property development jﬂ
Tai An Real Estate Limited A B A B AR MEEER
BRNFELEHME 2,872,5877C +
ERAA .
Guang Zhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb16,330,000 = 97% Property development
Cuijing Real Estate Limited A Bl A f AR MEER
BMEERS 16,330,0007T
EHERRRA A
Guangzhou Esteem Mainland China Rmb1,010,000 = 100% Property agency
Property Agency Limited B AR AR MERE
BMNTRESYE 1,010,0007%
REER QA
Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb42,500,000 - 100% Property development
Dongyu Real Estate Limited # B A B ARE MEZRE
BMNEERT 42,500,0007T
FEBRA A
Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb210,586,500 - 95% Property development
Junjing Real Estate Limited B ARE AR MEZRE
BMA LRSS 210,586,5007T
FERRA A
Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb133,340,000 - 95% Property development
Keji Garden Real Estate B K e AR MEZRE
Limited 133,340,0007T
BMNEERKE
FEBRRA A
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui  Mainland China Rmb42,287,624 - 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited B0 K e AR MEZRE
BMALBE 42,287,6247C
FEHERRRA A
Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb3,000,000 = 100% Water supply

Qingyuan Water

Supply Limited
BEME £FIR

FKER A A

LN

AR
3,000,0007T

e ZINAY
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Name of company

DAL

Guangzhou Hopson
Yihui Real Estate Limited
BEME &R
EHERRRA A

Guangzhou Hopson
Xingjing Business
Services Limited

BMNEEER

ABAERRA

Guangzhou Hopson
Yijing Real Estate Limited
BMEERS
FEiERRA A

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing
Real Estate Limited
BMAEmSR

FHEERLDAF

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and
Culture Company Limited

BME R XLl
ERARRAA]

Guangzhou Yiming
Real Estate Development
Company Limited

JE )1 B2 BA /5 3th 7 A 3%
BREAF]

Hopeson Holdings Limited
SEEEERATE

Hopson Development
(Consultants) Limited

AEAIRE (BERH)
BRRAE

Place of incorporation

and operations
af i} B L
REBHH

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
B OK R

Mainland China
R K B

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RERUEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z W&~ 7]

Issued and fully
paid capital
BETR
HRRAK

Rmb131,420,019
AR
131,420,0197T

Rmb500,000
ARH
500,0007C

Rmb68, 148,200
ARH
68,148,2007C

Rmb46,750,000
ARH
46,750,000

Rmb500,000
ARH
500,0007C

Rmb43,800,000
AR
43,800,0007T

HK$2 ordinary
HK$10,000 non-voting
deferred shares (i)

2B L AR
10,000/ 7T & & =1
iR FE PR (i)

us$2
2XTT

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
rEBENL
REE 2L
Directly  Indirectly

HE A

100%

= 95.5%

= 99.5%

= 70%

= 100%

= 50% (ii)

= 100%
= 100%

= 100%

Principal activity

FTEXRH

Property development

MEZRE

Provision of
clubhouse and
residential services

REGMR
FE RS

Property development

MEBR

Property development

MEBRR

Organisation of
artistic and
cultural activities

EMBEMRED

Property development

MEERE

Investment holding

REER

Provision of property
design and advisory
services

REMER K
A AR



Name of company

DRAEH

Hopson Development
(Properties) Limited

REER(ER)
BHRA A

Hopson (Guangzhou)
Industries Limited

EE(BM) B
BRAAE

Hopson Properties
(China) Limited

AETEREME
BRAA]

Nambour Properties Limited

HEEXERLA

Outward Expanse
Investments Limited

BAKRERRAF

Plaza Royale Water Palace
Convention Hotel Tianjin
Co. Limited

RAET =R RBE
BRAA]

Pomeroy Properties Limited

REREFXARAA

Prestige Dragon
Development Limited

EEZRARAA

Shanghai Hopson
Property Development
Company Limited

rFEeERME
RERRRAA

Shanghai Long Meng
Company Limited
LBEBERAA

Place of incorporation

and operations
o i B L
REBHH

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
Ll N

British Virgin Islands
RBRIEE

British Virgin Islands
RERURE

British Virgin Islands

KBRAERS

Mainland China
Ll N

British Virgin Islands
RBRAEE

Hong Kong

BB

Mainland China
B K

Mainland China
B K

Issued and fully

paid capital
BETR
HRRAK

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

Rmb8,276,600
ARE
8,276,6007C

Us$1
17T

us$2
2% 7T

us$2
2ETT

us$2
27T

HK$10,000

10,000/ 7T

US$7,413,700
7,413,700 7T

US$9,500,000
9,500,000% 7T

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z & 7]

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
rEBEML
RET 2L
Directly  Indirectly

HE A

100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

70%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 75%

Principal activity

FTEXHK

Property investment

MERE

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#

Property development

MEZRE

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REZK
Investment holding

REER

Hotel operation
BIERE

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

RERER

Property development

MEBRR

Property development

MEBRR
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Name of company

DAL

Solawide Properties Limited

SEEXEARLA

Sun Yick Properties Limited

HEEXBRODA

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang
Real Estate Development

Limited
RKEEERIEHE
REERAA

Value-Added Guangzhou

Limited
BMmineaE R A

Notes —

Place of incorporation

and operations
af i} B L
REBHH

British Virgin Islands
RBRAES

British Virgin Islands
RERUME

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
Ll N

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES = Z W&~ 7]

Issued and fully

paid capital
BETR
HRRAK

us$2
2ETT

us$2
2XTT

Rmb72,000,000
AR
72,000,0007T

Rmb1,000,000
AR
1,000,0007T

(i)  The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
any dividend, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding up unless a
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the
ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of the assets is distributable to
holders of the non-voting deferred shares.

(i) The are subsidiaries as the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of these companies, notwithstanding that the Group’s

equity interests in these companies are not more than 50%.

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

to the Group Principal activity

FEEENL
REBF DL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
HE i
= 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% Investment holding
REZK
- 70% Property development
MEER
- 70% Property development

MEZRE

et

(U]

(ii)

ZEERZRELERY BREE - FNEREMK
BEERNFRET I EENDR  BEAREER
k2K B AE B RK — 2R H
100,000,000,000,0008 T B K IE » H ik EE 5
MEBRADETERZREERNBEA -

HAREE R A UL ERF B E50%H A
i BEAREEEEE IS QAWM B R EER
NG ERRYRAEEZMBAT -



SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
e B EMTE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION LREEER
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS GmEBRHERK
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
—ETTF —EFT-F —TT-F —TTE=-F ZZETNE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FRT FAT FRT TR

op
HF
my
|
i
at
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
JE|
_FH
_Fq
#

Turnover ] 1,198,378 1,170,871 2,126,789 3,325,922 4,449,913
Cost of sales $HE R AR (829,788) (782,664) (1,347,736) (2,431,612)  (3,040,671)
Gross profit EF 368,590 388,207 779,053 894,310 1,409,242
Other revenue H g A 7,939 4,288 2,632 7,211 117,706
Selling and marketing expenses HELTZHEREER (91,353) (126,181) (200,529) (231,251) (251,400)
General and administrative expenses — & & 77 B & F8 (44,095) (57,080) (146,201) (139,852) (172,469)
Profit from operations 45 3 R 241,081 209,234 434,955 530,418 1,103,079
Share of profit of a jointly FE 1 — [ 2 R 42

controlled entity BB - 12,584 91,586 110,922 100,390
Share of loss of an JEAE — B &

associated company NAEEE - - (3,033) (1,118) (734)
Finance costs B 75 B AR (698) (5,938) (12,644) (4,280) (13,375)
Profit before taxation B 7% Bl g A 240,383 215,880 510,864 635,942 1,189,360
Taxation 18 (86,195) (90,891) (229,811) (252,000) (473,931)
Profit after taxation B 5% 1% 4 7 154,188 124,989 281,053 383,942 715,429
Minority interests DYR R 6,676 (4,024) (51,971) (68,588) (104,179)
Profit attributable to shareholders  f% 5 J& 15 )i 7 160,864 120,965 229,082 315,354 611,250
Dividends % 2 40,000 30,050 40,080 50,100 90,270
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GEPHEMNBE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION HREBER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS mEEEBEBX
2000 2001 2002
—ETETF —TT-F IZTT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi& T FHETL FETL
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Fixed assets B & E 14,493 22,507 31,900
Investment properties REME 1,673,000 1,710,000 2,625,600
Rights to receive rental income 1 78 - = 48,524
Properties under development for ~ H{ERHKE 2
long-term investment and BERAMER
land pending development FEELTH 530,741 805,996 1,458,007
Investment in an associated company 7 — 5 B & 2 &
z&é 7,503 2,413 779
Investment in a jointly P — 8 £ 7 43
controlled entity E%ﬁ%zhﬁ 30,000 38,431 85,412
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE - - -
Goodwill/ (Negative goodwill) EHE/ (AEB) = 6,587 6,108
Due from a director B —REEFHE - 1,000 =
Total non-current assets FERBEEMLE 2,255,737 2,586,934 4,256,330
Current assets REEE
Properties under development AfHEE2
for sale BRTYR 632,273 1,751,799 2,690,666
Completed properties for sale AfHEZ
BEKME 719,429 369,536 1,066,227
Accounts receivable & W BR 3% 306,803 277,167 121,045
Due from related companies JE Wt B 3 1 R) R IB 406 5,983 2,765
Prepayments, deposits and BAFE - Zek
other current assets HunsEE 74,385 156,784 117,760
Investment in securities BHEEKE 6,823 4,232 2,827
Due from a jointly controlled entity — J& U — 5 2
ZHE R ?k 157,339 - -
Cash and bank deposits BeRRTER 330,363 474,094 489,402
Total current assets mEEERE 2,227,821 3,039,595 4,490,692

2003
—EE=&

HK$°000
FET

39,163
2,558,124

2,097,001

770

141,124

4,072

4,840,254

3,417,222
940,580
309,204

3,138
169,561
4,492

659,979

5,504,176

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2004
—EETQNF
HK$°000
FET

754,172
2,643,009

1,353,725

36

283,349

20,531
(151,363)

4,903,459

5,658,749
1,039,146
336,545
2,170

133,789
4,184

736,609

7,911,192



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

Current liabilities
Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans,

current portion
Accounts payable
Land cost payable, current portion
Deferred income, current portion
Accruals and other payables
Due to an associated company
Due to directors
Due to related companies
Due to a jointly controlled entity
Due to ultimate holding company

Taxation payable

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

2000
HK$'000
FE T

mEBE

BHERITER (550,936)

RHRITER

SEERY) (228,223)

JE 15 BR 3K (143,011)

JEE 1<t £ #th i 2K

REE 5 (143,332)

ERWA -

KM -

EREAR

H fth & 1~ 5K I8 (158,384)

& — Rl Bt

UNEIE /L] -

B EERE (3,024)

S EERRFIE  (57,430)

JRE 15 — i £k [R] 42

EEBNE -

JEE 1+ B 5 42 R

UNEIE L] -

&3 Bi 8 (65,306)

mBAERE (1,349,646)

MENE EFE 878,175

B EBER

mE B E 3,133,912

2003
—TE=F
HK$'000
FET

(1,092,510)

(291,583)
(1,329,840)

(108,819)
(481,056)
(406,793)
(2,226)
(1,922)

(215,732)

(185,347)

(188,682)

(4,304,510)

1,199,666

LREEER
REEEBEEBR &)
2001 2002
—TE-F ZTT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
(751,483) (1,108,633)
(164,283) (375,527)
(147,844) (714,541)
(172,907) (346,252)
(140,083) (349,259)
(246,008) (287,397)
(1,562) (4,188)
(76,209) (303,314)
(87,189) (212,567)
(20,000) -
(45,357) (172,303)
(1,852,925) (3,873,981)
1,186,670 616,711
3,773,604 4,873,041

6,039,920

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION #r& B i & KL 2

2004
—gEng
HK$'000
FHET
(598,938)

(1,358,814)
(662,854)

(828,128)
(1,314,930)
(448,087)
(1,192)
(5,667)

(479,818)

(391,006)

(353,051)

(6,442,485)

1,468,707

6,372,166

o)
HF
g
F]
i
a
=
]
al
[l
L]
L]
_HT
_FH
#




SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FePHENTE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION mEMBER &)
(Continued) MEEERRER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
—EETFE —_TTE—F —TE-_F _—TT-F —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FHET
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Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Long-term bank loans, RESRTER -
non-current portion FERE B AR 17 (153,084) (482,632) (822,598) (1,662,224) (1,547,805)
Land cost payable, JE A AN
non-current portion LSRR ) (2,698) (126,425) (75,338) (11,847) (190,566)
Due to a director e — B ESHIE - - (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)
Due to ultimate holding company ~ JEff & AR 42 %
AN - = (20,000) (32,000) (59,000)
Deferred income, RN
non-current portion eSS - (58,889) (57,359) (53,934) (49,640)
Deferred taxation iR AE 1 (843,500) (890,920)  (1,145,800) (1,052,052)  (1,142,430)
Total non-current liabilities FnBaEMEE (999,282) (1,558,866) (2,131,095) (2,822,057) (2,999,441)
Minority interests LYRRER (156,615) (179,810) (297,726) (523,485) (118,956)
1,978,015 2,034,928 2,444,220 2,694,378 3,253,769
Financed by — BT EEX M
Share capital [ & 100,000 100,200 100,200 100,200 100,300
Reserves it fE 1,878,015 1,934,728 2,344,020 2,594,178 3,153,469
Shareholders’ equity % 5 = 1,978,015 2,034,928 2,444,220 2,694,378 3,253,769




Principal Office

Guangzhou Representative Office

Beijing Representative Office

Shanghai Representative Office

Tianjin Representative Office

Shenzhen Representative Office

TEWER

BEMRRREE

ERARMEE

LR RMREE

RERRMEE

RINCRMEE
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